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40 Years of Service Excellence
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e ASL was founded in Hong

Kong
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e ASL was appointed as the first
sole distributor to launch Sun
workstations
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e An innovative systems
integrator with foresight to
introduce data entry systems
and became the first and
only distributor of Digital
Equipment Corporation (DEC)
minicomputers in Hong Kong
market
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e A pioneer to introduce third
parties’ hardware maintenance
service
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1994

e ELM Computer Technologies
Ltd. (ELM) became ASL's
subsidiary in Hong Kong and
CSA Automated (Macau) Ltd.
was founded
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e ASL was awarded PC Bulk
contract totaled HK$315
million
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1990s

THE EXPANSION #% /&R

1997

e ASL was listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock code: 771)
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1999

* ELM won HKSAR Government
Midrange Computer System
Term Contract (namely UNIX
Bulk)
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2000

e Thailand subsidiary (ASL
Automated (Thailand)
Ltd.) was established and ASL
had presence in Taiwan
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2001

e ASL was awarded HKSAR
Government RDBMS/ADT
Software Contract (namely
Database Bulk)
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2002

e ASL won Information
Technology Professional
Services Arrangement (ITPSA)
Contract
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2000s

TODAY 3 ik

2005

e ASL was awarded each and
every Standing Offer
Agreements for quality
professional services (SOA-
QPS) that it bade for under four
separate service categories to
provide Information Technology
Professional Services for HKSAR
Government departments
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2006

e Guangzhou office
(Guangzhou Automated
Systems Limited) was
established
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2007

e Taiwan subsidiary (Taiwan
Automated Systems Limited)
was established
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2009

e Beijing Teamsun Technology
Co., Ltd. (Teamsun) (SHSE
Stock Code: 600410) acquired
CSC's entire holding of ASL's
shares to become the ultimate
controlling shareholder of ASL
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2010

e ASL opened five Customer
Service Centers (Beijing,
Hangzhou, Shanghai,
Shenyang and Zhuhai) in
Mainland China
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2011

e ASL acquired i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd
B B) 2G5S i-Sprint

Innovations Pte Ltd

#-Sprint
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2012

e ASL opened Security Operation
Center
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e ASL opened Shanghai Office of
Guangzhou Automated
Systems Limited
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e ASL launched new data center
managed services
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e ASL was awarded PC Bulk which
ASL has continually won it since
1995
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2013

e ASL's 40th Anniversary
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e ASL was awarded the Network Products (Category A) and Server Systems (Category B) Bulk Contract (This Bulk Contract was previously known as 2
Bulks separately, namely Network Bulk and Server Bulk. ASL won both Bulk tenders since 2003)
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e ELM was awarded the Network Products (Category A) and Server Systems (Category B) Bulk Contract (ELM has long been selling products and services
on midrange computer system and its solutions to various HKSAR government departments since 1999)

A EREH AR A

SHmER (ERIA) RARSEFS ERIB) KRA L (MM E KR AR QR A 1999 ety E A B
HRITETZ @E;ﬁﬁﬁ(}ﬁ #BPT)

EEmNMRS - &

e ASL got the highest total contract amount of Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 2 (SOA-QPS2)
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e ASL was awarded Category 1, 3 and 4 of the Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 3 (SOA-QPS3)
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e ASL received numerous industry awards
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Caring Company Award
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Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme

Gold Award
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Outstanding Volunteer Scheme
Enterprise Caring Award
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Hong Kong ICT Awards 2013
Best Lifestyle (Social, Communications
& Media) Silver Award
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Customer Service Excellence with Corporate Responsibility
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ASL STAFF
MOVIE NIGHT
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Caring for the Environment FF1ZIRE

ASL supports customers to create é
Greener IT Environment HIM(KPMC
Fellow Member of HKGPC




Quality PoIicy of ASL
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We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing customers innovative, quality, and
integrated one-stop IT services and solutions. We aim at satisfying our customer’s business needs through
forging strategic alliance with our business partners and the shared value of the Group — “TAPS":

e “T" —Taking part in “Teamwork”

e “A" — Being “Accountable” on each one’s area of responsibilities towards the Group’s goal
e “P" — “Problem solving” for customers by leveraging the Group’s strength and synergy
“S" — "Strive for excellence” to achieve continual improvements
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Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.3 — Maturity Level 3 Rating

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)

1SO 9001 : 2008 1SO 9001 : 2008 1SO 9001 : 2008 1.3 0 —F =¥
Certificate No.: CC 1505 Certificate No.: CC 5337 Certificate No.: CC 5484
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REGAERPRRSE SRR

B APMG-nternational ™
ISO/IEC 20000 LY
""-\1\, :

|sp 20000-1_: 2011 ision of ion Security itoring Service
Cemﬁcéte No.: CC 5406 PHER R EERE

IT Service Management

System
FERMREEERA

ELM Computer Technologies Limited Rtk E SR BR A 7]

1SO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 3268

Provision of ion T System

Software Development,
Installation and Maintenance Support Services
BEEABERGER - KR
REREEXRRE



ASL at a Glance
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¢ Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

® Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”) (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) became
the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder in September 2009, supporting the
Company's further business expansion in the Asia Pacific region

¢ Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT solutions and services to customers across the region
with business operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau, Thailand,
Singapore and Malaysia, etc.

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E—_ZT—=F+—_A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 E—F—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

e Continued to provide a wide spectrum of business solutions and IT services for both
public and commercial sectors

¢ Continued to gain trust and support from public sector and stood out at the top
IT services provider in terms of the aggregate contract value in providing quality
professional services among other industry peers

e Grasped opportunities arising from IT infrastructure, solutions and services in the
commercial sector

e Has undertaken a series of measures, including enhancing operational model,
strengthening major account sales strategy while maintaining stringent cost control
policies

e Earned ISO 9001 certification in internal process management

e Completed the subscription by bringing a strategic investor, Great Ally Investments
Limited (a subsidiary of Peregrine Greater China Capital Appreciation Fund, L.P), to
subscribe 41.67% of i-Sprint’s shares in February 2014

e Continue developing its IT solutions business, value-added services, as well as expanding
its regional business

e Concentrate on the businesses of maintenance, networking, security infrastructure, help
desk outsourcing and managed services in particular

o Strive for the development of potential business, including business in Macau and the
above-mentioned business areas

e Further hone its business model in response to market trends

e Continue to improve operational efficiency

o Capture any regional opportunities arising from the prevailing IT trends actively

o Leverage the presence in China and service delivery capability of Teamsun to enhance the
service quality and satisfy the diverse business needs of customers

¢ Endeavour to attract and retain more talents
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Financial Calendar
BB

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT #& A&
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Financial Summary
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RESULTS
S |
For the For the nine For the
year ended months ended year ended
31st December 31st December 31st March
#2t-A=1-H BETZA=t-8 HZ=A=1-A
[l%354 IEAEA HEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2010
I Sct3 S 3 “T—F S %3 I S 513
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T T T
(restated)
(B
Continuing operations BEREEY
Revenue WA 1,612,958 1,673,279 1,537,328 994,509 1,329,982
Profit before income tax IR ATA 23,594 47,701 45,110 44,181 53,617
Income tax expense FERRY (6,314) (6,507) (294) (9,648) (9,857)
Profit from continuing operations RERELEEE 26 17,280 41,19 44,816 34,533 43,760
Discontinued operations BALSEER
Profit from discontinued operations REBK TR £ 67 - - - - 72,598
Profit for the year/period attributable to ~~ ARARRAZE Aflh
equity holders of the Company &/ dmiEF 17,280 41,19 44,816 34,533 116,358
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERERE
At 315t December At 315t March
Rt=A=t-8 R=A=1-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2010
%-= -FC FF Z3-%F “3-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR AL THL TEL
(restated)
(#31)
Total assets BEE 1,115,090 1,044,218 909,247 820,799 830,861
Total liabilities #aE 506,443 470,216 401,620 363,558 424,796
608,647 574,002 507,627 457,41 406,065
Equity attributable to ARARAHEA
equity holders of the Company ElhER
Total equity @ 608,647 574,002 507,627 457,241 406,065
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
("ASL” or the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2013.

For the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$1,613.0 million, a decrease of 3.6% compared with the corresponding
period last year. Profit before income tax was HK$23.6 million, a decrease
of 50.5% compared with the corresponding period last year. The Group
maintained a healthy financial position and its cash balance as at 31st
December 2013 was approximately HK$114.7 million (excluding assets of

disposal group classified as held for sale).

This year was full of challenges to the Group. The drop in profit for the
year was mainly attributed to the increasingly prudent customer spending
in information technology (IT), intensified market competition and
unexpectedly high delivery costs associated with a sizable business contract
of the Group. Nevertheless, the Group has actively responded to the market

changes and implemented appropriate measures. During the year, the Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB ZAEE AR AR Annual Report 2013 F 3k
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continued to implement cost control policies which resulted in a fall in overall
operating expenses. In this regard, the Group will continue its efforts to
further enhance the operational efficiency and adapt the Group’s business
model. | strongly believe that we are moving on the right track, and those
steps and efforts we are taking will strengthen the core competencies of the
Group in its long-term development, enhance our competitive edge in the

market and deliver a higher value for all stakeholders.

The Group continued to seize business opportunities by riding on its solid
foundation, accumulated operation and technical experience. The Group
was also dedicated to optimising its service quality and competency and
has earned certifications in various IT domains. The Group has attained
certifications, including 1SO 9001, ISO 20000 and ISO 27001, covering
extensive service delivery, software development and internal processes.
This signified that the services of the Group have reached an international
standard. Apart from demonstrating the Group’s competence in providing
world-class IT services and solutions, such certifications also enable us to
satisfy different business needs of our customers and further solidify the

Group’s leading position as a one-stop IT services provider.

During the year, the Group continued to receive numerous awards, for
example, the “Best Lifestyle (Social, Communications & Media) Silver Award"”
under the Hong Kong ICT Awards for the turnkey mobile queuing system
provided by the Group for Genki Sushi and Sen-ryo, two popular Japanese
restaurant chains of Maxim’s Caterers Limited. The system created a brand
new dining experience for consumers through seamless integration of
applications, mobility and Global Positioning System (GPS). This award was a
greatest encouragement to our business application development team and

manifested that we have market-proven IT solutions and quality service.

In addition, the Group was also honored with numerous awards from various
IT vendors, including “FY 13 Best Performing HPSW (ESP) Reseller” and “FY13
Top Performing Enterprise Group Reseller — Server” presented by Hewlett-
Packard, “The Fastest Growth Partner of Hong Kong” from Juniper Networks
and “FY13 the Best Reseller of Oracle Systems Engineered System” awarded
by Oracle. These awards fully demonstrated the Group is a reputable reseller

and has competence in providing IT solutions in the market.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Since its establishment, the Group has spared no efforts in social
responsibility, especially in charitable activities such as helping the
vulnerable groups, promoting voluntary work and supporting environmental
protection. For instance, the Group set up accessible websites for the
public organisations, donated computers, provided IT support for non-
governmental organisations and offered free computer courses for people
in need. The Group has been awarded the “Caring Company Award”
presented by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for three consecutive
years and was again honored the “Outstanding Volunteer Scheme —
Enterprise Caring Award” from the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council. In addition, the Group received a “Web Accessibility Recognition
Scheme Gold Award” presented by the Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer and the Equal Opportunities Commission. All these
awards recognised the Group’s outstanding performance in corporate social

responsibility in 2013.

This year marked the 40th anniversary of the Group. To celebrate this major
milestone, the Group organised various activities, including an anniversary
dinner, a staff movie night, a blood donation day and a charity golf day,
and brought in our staff, business partners and clients all together in those
activities. The series of celebration activities not only promoted the spirit of

sharing, but also reinforced our relationships with clients.

Looking forward, the Group will face new challenges and opportunities. As
one of the leading IT services providers in the region, we will continue to
provide better IT solutions and services in order to exploit our competitive
advantages and accelerate business performance. Besides, the Group
will also continue to support various community activities and fulfill its

commitments in corporate social responsibility.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EMAR AR
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Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow directors
for their dedicated services. On behalf of the Board, | would also like to
thank all staff for their whole-hearted contributions, especially during the
challenging period, to the business development of the Group, and our

business partners and shareholders for their support during the year.

HU Liankui

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th March 2014
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial results

For the year ended 31st December 2013, revenue of the Group was
HK$1,613.0 million, lower by 3.6% compared to the same period last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2013, product sales and service revenue
were HK$890.5 million and HK$722.5 million, decreasing by 1.6% and
6.0% respectively compared with the corresponding period last year. Product
sales and service revenue contributed 55.2% and 44.8% to total revenue
respectively, compared to 54.1% and 45.9% with the corresponding period
last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2013, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 47.0% and 53.0% to revenue respectively, compared to 46.6%
and 53.4% for the corresponding period in 2012.

During the year under review, the Group operated under challenging
operating conditions. Gross profit margin and profit after income tax for
the full year of 2013 were 9.3% and HK$17.3 million, lower by 2.8% and
58.1% respectively compared with the corresponding period last year.
Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 19th March 2014.
The decrease in profit after income tax was mainly due to the unexpectedly
high delivery costs associated with a sizable business contract of the Group
which caused a significant drop in the gross profit margin. In addition, the
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increasingly prudent customer spending in information technology (IT) and
intensified market competition also led to a drop in full year’s gross profit
margin and new orders secured in the first half of 2013. The new orders,
however, picked up in the second half of the year. Upon the implementation
of various measures relating to resources integration, cost reduction and
enhancement of operating efficiency, the Group has achieved an initial
positive momentum which resulted in a fall in overall operating costs to
partially offset the impacts of gross profit drop. We believe that there are still
rooms to improve the operational efficiency. With our diversified business
development, we expect such strategy will help alleviate the possible impact
of the above-mentioned contract and the overall operating environment on
the business performance.

For the year ended 31st December 2013, orders newly secured by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,686.9 million. As of 31st December 2013,
the order book balance was approximately HK$840.3 million, an increase
of HK$10.5 million compared with the corresponding period last year. The
Group’s net cash stood at approximately HK$114.7 million with a working
capital ratio of 1.73:1. The Group maintained a healthy balance sheet and
outstanding borrowings amounted to HK$49.3 million as at 31st December
2013. The above amounts excluded orders, cash and cash equivalents and
short-term borrowings of disposal group classified as held for sale.

Business Review

Despite the challenging environment in 2013, the Group continued to
provide a wide spectrum of business solutions and IT services for both public
and commercial sectors with its solid foundation, accumulated operation
and technical experience over the past forty years as well as our unrelenting
efforts to seize business opportunities.

The Group, during the year, continued to gain trust and support from public
sector and stood out at the top IT services provider in terms of the aggregate
contract value in providing quality professional services among other industry
peers. The Group continued to garner and provide implementation of
numerous orders for the government to accommodate different government
IT initiatives such as web accessibility, electronic information management

and the government human resources management services.

In the commercial sector, the Group grasped opportunities arising from IT
infrastructure, solutions and services to meet different market demands.
The major orders recorded during the year included provisioning business
intelligence solutions to theme parks, revamping storage system for a pan-
Asian retail brand, and upgrading enterprise content management for a
renowned local bank. The Group also expanded its business in the aviation
sector by extending its customer base and securing sizeable contracts.
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For the business activities outside Hong Kong, the buoyant gambling industry
in Macau stimulated the demand for computing facilities and IT solutions. Of
note was a sizeable order received from an integrated gaming resort in Cotai
for the provision of core network infrastructure. Across the Taiwan Strait,
the Group continued to take advantage of the cross-territories opportunities
by supplying IT infrastructure to a Shenzhen subsidiary of one of the world’s
largest electronic contract manufacturers in Taiwan.

Outlook and Prospects

The Group demonstrated its capability of implementing the stated strategy
through an inorganic growth to accelerate the Group's development.
In February 2014, the Group successfully completed the subscription by
bringing a strategic investor, Great Ally Investments Limited (the “Strategic
Investor”) (a subsidiary of Peregrine Greater China Capital Appreciation
Fund, L.P.), to subscribe for 118,973,914 new shares of i-Sprint Innovations
Pte Ltd (“i-Sprint”) (representing 41.67 % of the enlarged issued share capital
of i-Sprint) at a consideration of US$9,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$76,833,000).

This strategic investment allows the Group to record an unaudited one-
off investment gain. Following the subscription, i-Sprint ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Group, yet the Group remains as the largest single
shareholder of i-Sprint by holding 48.22% of i-Sprint’s issued share capital.
Notably, the Group believes that we will benefit from the subscription in
different aspects. For instance, the Strategic Investor possesses abundant
experience and professional knowledge in investment and will bring
expertise in planning for the initial public offering of i-Sprint’s shares in the
near future, thus enabling us to materialise the investment in i-Sprint at
the earliest opportunity. In addition, the future collaboration between the
Strategic Investor and ASL will bring synergies to the Group.

Apart from looking for inorganic growth opportunities, the Group will
continue developing its IT solutions business, value-added services, as well as
expanding its regional business. Capitalising on our multi-vendor expertise
and strong track records, we will in particular concentrate on the business
of maintenance, networking, security infrastructure, help desk outsourcing
and managed services. Meanwhile, the Group will further hone its business
model in response to market trends and actively capture any regional
opportunities arising from the prevailing IT trends to facilitate the sustainable
development of the Group.

Regarding the cross-territories business, the Group will continue to leverage
the presence in China and service delivery capability of our ultimate holding
company, Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd., to enhance our service
quality and satisfy the diverse business needs of our customers.
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In response to the challenging business environment over the previous
year and in the year ahead, we have undertaken a series of measures,
including enhancing our operational model, strengthening major account
sales strategy while maintaining stringent cost control policies. In addition,
the Group will strive for the development of potential business, including
business in Macau and the above-mentioned business areas. The Group
believes that those measures are able to accelerate product time-to-market,
enhance business agility and flexibility and raise our service quality.

We will also endeavour to attract and retain more talents which are vital
for the Group as an IT services provider. These appropriate measures are
expected to facilitate the Group to be more responsive to the market
changes, improve our operating margins and accelerate our business growth
in the long run.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2013, the Group’s total assets of HK$1,115.1 million
were financed by current liabilities of HK$471.0 million, non-current liabilities
of HK$35.5 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$608.6 million. The Group
had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.73:1.

As at 31st December 2013, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facility from banks of approximately HK$310.0 million (2012: HK$137.8
million). The Group had pledged leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in an aggregate amount of HK$267.4 million (2012: HK$226.3
million) and restricted bank deposits of approximately HK$0.1 million (2012:
HK$4.0 million) for banking facilities and performance bonds granted to
the Group respectively. The performance bonds issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts were approximately HK$44.0 million as
at 31st December 2013 (2012: HK$55.0 million). The Group’s gearing ratio
(total borrowings over total equity) was 8.1% as at 31st December 2013
(2012: 0.5%), the calculated gearing ratio excluded short-term borrowings
of disposal group classified as held for sale.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated
resources and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for
the Group include trust receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and
term loans. The interest rates of most of them are fixed by reference to the
respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"). The short-term bank borrowings, excluding short-term borrowings
of disposal group classified as held for sale, are denominated in HKD and
New Taiwan dollars.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in USD and HKD. Foreign
exchange exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long
as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to link HKD to USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rates and therefore no related hedging financial
instrument was applied during the year ended 31st December 2013 (2012:

same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2013, bank deposits held as security for banking
facilities and performance bonds amounted to approximately HK$0.1 million
(2012: HK$4.0 million). As at 31st December 2013, performance bonds of
HK$44.0 million (2012: HK$55.0 million) had been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$44.5 million as at 31st December 2013
(2012: HK$44.5 million). The amount utilised against goods supplied as at
31st December 2013 which was secured by the corporate guarantee was
approximately HK$1.1 million (2012: HK$0.9 million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2013, the Group had no contracted capital
commitments (2012: HK$0.4 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 20.1%
and 7.9%, respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 39.8% and
11.5%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2013 did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2013, the Group, excluding its associates,
employed 1,475 permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, mainland
China, Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted
on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share options scheme.

2014 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting
on 21st May 2014, and the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 16th May 2014 to 21st May 2014, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
with effect from 31st March 2014) for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 15th May 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the review of
the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board
HUI Wing Choy, Henry

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th March 2014
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Activity Highlights
EEITER

2013

JAN — A 2013 JAN —H 2013

Representatives of the Education, Science and Technology Department of the ASL shares emerging scale out storage to

Liaison Office of the Central I - delegates during ASL-EMC Executive Luncheon.
People’s Government in the Emdie——ind ASLA ASL- — -

Hong Kong Special PERNEEER A SUE EMC TR A

Administrative Region visit BFEenm

the headquarters of ASL. HeE =z

hRARBFEEEFRIT RARAET Y

BB AR A EHB RHED T T e e

MRRLEBHREFLED - 7o

ASL joins the Cisco Connect 2013 as a gold sponsor and ASL Taiwan partners with Oracle to organize “Oracle Exalytics
showcases the latest network solution with advanced Cisco’s In-Memory“seminar, sharing the Business Intelligence
technology bundled with ASL's professmnal IT services. technology applications with participants.

ASLIAS M E BN R 8 5 15 ASL &/ Oracle & ### =

21 Cisco Connect 2013 - [ P38 E NG IR A A

[N LAESE Y Cisco B el MEgEHE

fBa ASLEZRITRSE [EESF- T3

BRI BRTTER

The Group receives the Best Lifestyle (Social, Communications & Media) ASL receives a Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme
Silver Award under the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2013 through its turnkey Gold Award in recognition of the accomplishment in
mobile queuing system for Genki Sushi and Sen-ryo, two popular Japanese making its website accessible.

restaurant chains of Maxim'’s
Caterers Limited.
BHEAEZLDRMARAAE
TREZEDr A EEE = 5
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B REEBEM BB
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ASLEE BT B 2 7TRT B2 5 » JATASLEY
LR AR A ELRR AT -

ASL Taiwan wins “FY13 the Best Reseller of Oracle Systems Engineered
Systems”.

ASLEBRE13FERBENERREDHER] -
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Activity Highlights
mBER

JUN 7 H 2013

Over 200 staff and their family members join a kickoff celebratory event of ASL 40th anniversary — the

Staff Movie Night.
B200BETRARBLT T IBHABMAIOBAFEEEDFHELEXNEE °

AUG /\ H 2013

OCT + A 2013

ASL celebrates its 40th anniversary with its business partners and customers by organizing ASL Charity Golf Day. The event raises a total
of HK$100,000 fund for Heep Hong Society to support its newly opened center in Tung Chung.

ASEPASLAERMANHE -—REBBEHELEPENED R0 AFHE < 1HES
SEEFFERNFIBPL

HEGBETELERUBE T HEE A

AUTOMATED ASL 40" Anniversary
| AUTOMATED B0 aicotieroltptor’ |

- J&ED

p—— T
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

REAMEZEEZSY

HONG KONG CUSTOMER
BREF

SCOPE OF WORK
BRI E

Government B

A government department

— BT AR

Design, supply, delivery, installation, commissioning, maintenance,
training and other related services of establishment of a common
e-services platform

REY—EAHENEFRE T EIRER  H®E Fx 2K #
o R R R E AR R RS

A government department

— BT EBFT

Provision of IT security monitoring and incident response support
services for central Internet services and central computer centre
network services

RPREEAREMARAEKP OEERBREEMRERZ BTN
R <2 4 R

A statutory body
—IEEME

Supply, delivery, installation and maintenance of x86 processor based
server hardware and software

HIE - EIX R R xS6 I R RSB KM

Various government departments

UER AT EB I

Category 1, 3 and 4 of the Standing Offer Agreement for Quality
Professional Services 3 (SOA-QPS3)
BEEMRHEE R B BRI 3 (SOA-QPS3) 2RISR — » =
AT

Various government departments

BUERR AT BRI

Education ¥ &

Network Products (Category A) and Server Systems (Category B) Bulk
Contract

R Em (BRI A) kAR 748 (FB5IB) KREH

A well-known university
—ZEBRE

Deployment of Wifi for whole new Ho Man Tin campus and Wifi revamp
in old campus

REPRAAXARETEEESBE L ERERNS BRER

A well-known university
PN

Provision of identity and access management system

R H DA R IE R RS
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RNENMEZEBRAHL

HONG KONG CUSTOMER SCOPE OF WORK
BREF BRI E

Financial Services and Insurance £RR# R R

A renowned local bank Enterprise content management system upgrade
—REZNRUIRIT RACERNDEERR

A securities firm of a Japanese-based global Set up of private cloud infrastructure

financial institution in Hong Kong BB EERRE
—HERZHRARNERSREEETNS

Vor s /NC]

A wholly-owned subsidiary of a leading Revamp of core network

banking group U AZ L A4
—REAEBHUNRITEENZEMNER

Al

One of the oldest banks in mainland China Provision of deskside managed services in support of its 50 branches and
A B Pt A — R R S SR K A KSR T offices in Hong Kong

REEBH S0 M7 R ERIZHREE R RS

Telecommunications E#

A telecommunications operator Provision of network security upgrade

—KEMEER REBERETR

General Commerce B

A pan-Asian retail brand Provision of business intelligence solutions
—REEERME REEEDRBRTR

Theme parks Provision of storage system revamp
FEAE RMUGFRAGEN

Transportation E#i

A Hong Kong-based airline Provision of mobile device management
—KUBEEREMMZELAF RHTHREEE
One of the world’s leading independent Provision of virtualisation solution

aircraft engineering and maintenance groups Rt EEYLARR T
HEF—REHELNBURETIREREER
=
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RENEZEEAK

OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
"INEF

SCOPE OF WORK
BRI E

Mainland China FERit

A mainland security solutions supplier

—RKAM L BRRTT RHER

Provision of IT infrastructure facilities for a renowned transportation
operator in Hong Kong for its launch of a massive transportation
system which will connect Hong Kong and mainland China with system
completion in 2015
RERBEEZLERSEFNRMEMBRERRE  UMEAER-ZF
—hFERT 7 ERBTBHRANMNREERRR

A Shenzhen subsidiary of one of the world’s
largest electronic contract manufacturers in
Taiwan
AEHRP-—REREANETFERRIAEN
AN E A A

Provision of IT infrastructure

REBMBREZRE

One of the world’s largest electronics
contract manufacturers

Hbh—HAeHaAErERRIE

Completion of container-based data center in Tianjin

ERER/ETREREAEED O

The largest independent local bank in Hong
Kong
—REBBRARBILAMIRTT

Provision of infrastructure for customer’s discover recovery site in
Shanghai and Shenzhen
RERERN LB R 2 EEDORFEERRE

Macau #P

An integrated gaming resort in Cotai

— KRB AR & ERE BRAT

Taiwan & &

Provision of core network infrastructure

RERLOBEER

An intellectual property management and
business law consultancy service company
—RIRHABEREE KB FEEBRERS
N

Thailand &E

Design and installation of the network and storage solutions for
customer’s new office

REPHMAERMER ML EBEMFREERT R

A renowned bank

—ﬁsﬁ%%iﬁﬁ

Provision of infrastructure solutions to around 250 branches in 25
provinces on a multi-year basis

RESMHR 25 EE#K 250 D TRE—BABBRFNERBRTT R

A securities company in Thailand which

is under an Asia‘s famous securities and
investment broker
—DNERNELFRRELLETHREZE
LGl

Provision of i-Sprint’s security solution
RHI-Sprint W 2 AT %R
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OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
BINE

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RFENFTEZEERL

SCOPE OF WORK
SREE

An established and international connected
bank in Malaysia
—RE LKA KBRS R R IRTT

Provision of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix UAS end-to-end encryption (E2EE)
solutions to ensure security and protection of user’s ID and password
that greatly enhance security of Internet banking services

$RHEi-Sprint AccessMatrix UAS i Elli b (F2EF) SR 5 2 - LAREIR A
PHID  MEFH 2 RIRE - KRN LRITRBNEZ S

A Malaysian government agency

— BRI BUT R

A leading agency on trade facilitation and
revenue enforcement matters

—HKELNE SR R ABEKE

Provision of i-Sprint's AccessMatrix UAM solution to enhance the
application security services and also to streamline and greatly reduce
SDLC timeline for internal applications

IEfEi-Sprint AccessMatrix UAMBESR F - LIRS EAREFLZ 2R -
I L R AR K T A AR E A2 /7 1) SDLC By fE 3%

Provision of i-Sprint's UAM (Web SSO) solution to embark on Enterprise
Architecture to build a smart architecture to optimize trade facilitation
and controls

heffti-Sprint UAM (# B SSO) BRI TRIVETT R ERBRIE 2 — A8 5L
BRIELAMB(LE SR R IE

A renowned securities group in Singapore
—REFRBHIINEE FEE

Provision of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix end-to-end encryption (E2EE)
authentication solutions with Hardware Security Module (HSM) for the
protection of user ID and password for millions stock trading users to
address regulatory compliance

1R AHi-Sprint AccessMatrix i 2|35 SN % (E2EE) & (0 S & R T R MR RE &2
2 (HSM) - MREUBEHRERSBFOAP IDMET » LA
WER

One of the largest Canada-based financial
and insurance group with principal
operations in Asia, Canada and the United
States

FEXEBRDMN - MERFEBRMHEH—F
BARINZEARN S BRREE

Annual Report 2013 &%

Supply of i-Sprint’'s AccessMatrix end-to-end encryption (E2EE) and
authentication solutions for the protection of user ID of insurance policy
holders to address audit compliance of Monetary Authority of Singapore
(MAS)

HRALI-Sprint AccessMatrix i 2l i 1% (E2EE) K 52 38 7R 77 22 AR FE(R B8
FEANAPID  UREFINESRERRNER
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‘ Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EENEREEAEE/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TES

Mr. LAl Yam Ting, Ready BE & £ 4%

Vice Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors

Mr. Lai, aged 61, is an Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company. He joined the Group in 1976
and was the General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the Group from 1991 to 2002. He was appointed
as a Director of the Company in 1997 and the Chief Executive Officer (formerly known as Managing Director) of
the Company from 2002 to 2011. Mr. Lai graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Science Degree (Honours) in 1976. Mr. Lai is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

EARESEZREERE

FRELA  BENT B RARRZHATEERETE - FR-NWENFNEAEERR - AN FE-FTE
“ERAREBZBEREGELE - FR-NMNAFRZEREARFZES  URR_TZ_FE_T——F5
ARBZITHAER (ML REFRLE) - BAEN-NEAFRERBETIXARE  FEER(RE) B8
i - BEEMBARARAETHBAR ZESE -

Mr. HUI Wing Choy, Henry #Fk 81 %4

Chief Executive Officer of the Company

Mr. Hui, aged 48, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1994 and was appointed as a Director of the Company in 2011. Mr. Hui was formerly the Senior Vice President
of Sales, Hong Kong, Macau & Mainland China of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Hui holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering in 1991 and
a Master of Science Degree in Computer and Electronic Engineering in 1994 from the Oregon State University in
the United States of America. Mr. Hui is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

AR ZITHRAR

FEAE  BENT N\ RARTZATEERITREH - TR NARFNEARTRR -~ —FERE
REARBZES - FEELREPER (BB ARAR (ARFAZ2EHREMBEB AT RES  EPFIRFEA
HERRBIAE  FEER NN —FEEEHRPMMNIRABRBEXEEREF IRSERB2LBM RN
—NNNEEZRBGERREF TRBBELIEM - FEETALRRETHBARZES -

Mr. LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon E ¥ %4

Mr. Leung, aged 53, is an Executive Director of the Company since 2009. Mr. Leung has been appointed as a
senior advisor acting on behalf of the Company with Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the
Company’s ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, since 2011. He was appointed
as an executive director of Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun, and was subsequently
became a director of Teamsun in March 2014. Mr. Leung is currently a director and the co-founder of AsiaSoft
Company Limited (“AsiaSoft”) and was the chief executive officer of AsiaSoft. Prior to AsiaSoft's establishment
in 2007, Mr. Leung spent 17 years with Sun Microsystems Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ (Stock Code: JAVA)
in the Greater China region. He was the managing director (Greater China) and a corporate director for Sun
Microsystems Inc.. Prior to joining Sun Microsystems Inc., Mr. Leung held several finance and/or sales positions in
companies such as Wang Pacific Limited, Unisys China Limited, Philip Morris Asia Inc. and Exxon Chemical Asia
Pacific Ltd.. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Computer Method and a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from the California State University, Long Beach, the United States of America. Mr.
Leung is also the chairman and/or a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, including the chairman of
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd (“i-Sprint”) and certain of its subsidiaries. Upon the completion of subscription of
i-Sprint’s shares by Great Ally Investments Limited in February 2014, i-Sprint and its subsidiaries have ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Company.

Rk BERTZ5 BZTTNFRARAFRZHITES - RELA T ——FREZERNKAATE
R EEERR G LT 2 AARREIER AR REB R B RG BRAE ([ZEBRK D) = RER © 5
NEZEREBAKZMEARRABRERARNZNTES  #MR T NF=ARREBRAKES -
54T R AsiaSoft Company Limited ([AsiaSoft]) = F LR BIH A K& 2 EH AsiaSoft 2 1TEABE, - R=F
T FRK L AsiaSoft BT + R4 B NETIET _ETTA R Sun Microsystems Inc. (BRDREE © JAVA) KR 2 [& £ 5
T4 o FEHESun Microsystems Inc. Z KFRES HALCIR RMEEE o 18 Sun Microsystems Inc. Al + 2%
EERELERARAT - BRNRRTEEGRAF - FFEHE R EH M & E K& Exxon Chemical Asia Pacific Ltd.
ELRAREEL A G R REERA - REERAERMMNMNIASRESRBERZ IRBH ZBEL+2
RIEERELEN - REENARARNETHERARZER R, SES - 2Fi-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
([i-Sprint)) REEFHEBRABIMNER - R=ZZT—WF A ' Great Ally Investments Limited 52X 528 i-Sprint &
7%+ i-Sprint R EMBARETNBARARZMEAR
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENRSREBAB/BNT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ¥#{T7&%

Mr. HU Liankui $AE$ZE &4

Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors

Mr. Hu, aged 63, is a Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company since 2009. He is currently the
chairman and a director of Teamsun and the chairman of Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd.. Mr. Hu
was the chairman of the first board of directors of Teamsun before he was re-designated as the chairman of
Teamsun. Mr. Hu is currently an independent director of China Distance Education Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Hu holds a Master’s Degree in Management Engineering
from Tsinghua University in the PRC. Mr. Hu is also a director of the Company’s subsidiary.

AAREEEZER

L BERT=ZR A-TTNFER/ARBTZFNTEEREE - RA/EBRKEFERESERILR
EBBANEERARNESE - NAEREBARESRA  HALREBRAKNE - EEEGEER - %L
ARERERHE (EROREEROESFZZM LM 2BLES - AREFATEFEARREIEETR
LR - AEETRARF - IBATZES -

Mr. WANG Weihang E#fi 54

Mr. Wang, aged 47, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2009. Mr. Wang is currently the vice
chairman and president, and a director of Teamsun and the sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s immediate holding company. Hong Kong Teamsun is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was the general manager of Teamsun, and the vice chairman and general
manager of the first board of directors of Teamsun before he was re-designated as the vice chairman and
president of Teamsun. Mr. Wang holds an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua
University in the PRC and a Master’s Degree in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic Technology from
the Information and Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang University in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded
as B E {4 S 2 4% H D 23R (China Software Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate*) and R Bl (4 EE %1
) A1 (China Software Industry Prestige Award Laureate®) by China Software Industry Association in 2009. He
was also awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese Brand Award” in 2011.

ThE BEOTER A-TTNFER/ARBZFNTES - ERERAEB RN A EFTEREHLE
= WARARZ ERERAREBRRR () ARAR (FBEBAK ) E—E% - BEEBRKIIE
BREREEZZ2EHANBRR - RREAEBAK ZBIESRFREHN  EXREAEB RN ZBEERSE
—EEFSREERFECIE - TRERETRBEARRELSREEABTHEERLTEM - ARTEN
TIASRELRBFIRBRARE 2 L MR ENEFRMELSM - TEAENR_ZEAFETBERETER
EREDEUMHEXRLACERRPERMHEEDBAY - URETN T ——FERE [P EREEHGE D
AEE] -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENSREBABBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BY ##TES

Ms. YOUNG Meng Ying &+

Ms. Young, aged 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2009. Ms. Young is
currently a director of Pine Link Business Advisory Limited and Sun & Young Business Advisory Limited. She
worked for Barclays Bank PLC as a senior trust officer in 1992 and founded Lynch Consultancy Limited, a
boutique business advisory/consultancy firm specialised in pre-IPO or pre-merger corporate restructuring in 2000.
Ms. Young holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration Management from the University of South
Australia in Australia and a Master’s Degree in Practising Accounting from the Monash University in Australia.
Ms. Young is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a certified
practicing accountant of CPA Australia and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

Bt BERTRR B-ZEAFER/RNATZELIFNTES - BR IR RRBEELAFR AR LA
BRELABRARNES - MR- NMWN—FEERERKERTZSRERIE  R-EZTFRRF/ERR
FEBERTRA MR RAIEEMAY 2 £57EHBERARBEEMERAR - BLTHERNERASHE
2 THERB LB KRN Monash University I3 2 UE R L RM - AL ABESHIATZHEER

B BN A RE R R EBER A WE RITRARAEES -

Mr. LU Jiaqi BEEH L4

Mr. Lu, aged 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2009. Mr. Lu is currently the
chairman and managing director of Pearl River Distribution Limited. He previously worked for China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and Modern Advance Company Limited in Hong Kong. Mr. Lu holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Engineering from Huazhong Institute of Technology (currently known as Huazhong University of
Science and Technology) in the PRC and a Master’s Degree in Management Engineering from Tsinghua University
in the PRC.

B BERNTZR B-ERNFRARABTZBUIFPTES - EELRBRIITERRHEERARTE
ERFEEE - RN EARERNER (RE) ERATAKRREFEXARAT - BEEHETEER TS
(RBAERRBRARS)EBEZ TRRBL2M - ARTEBEASHE 2 BB TRET 20 -

Ms. XU Peng R E &+

Ms. Xu, aged 57, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2009. Ms. Xu is a PRC lawyer,
currently the principal partner of Lantai Partners in Beijing, a committee member of the 11th and 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Chaoyang District of Beijing, a supervisor
in the eighth session of Beijing Municipal Lawyers Association, a vice president of Beijing Chaoyang District
Lawyers Association, a council member of China Behavior Law Association and a supervisor of Beijing Information
Industry Association. Ms. Xu was also the officer and partner of Beijing Hengde Law Firm. Ms. Xu received her
education at the Civil, Commercial and Economic Law School of the China University of Political Science and Law
and completed 4% 75% 2 5 3 #1754 3R42 (the postgraduate program of economic law*) in 2009.

Rt BERTER B-ZENFRARDAZELIFNTES - RELIFEREM - RRIERBAEM
EBMEIBABA FEARBAHEERLATAGRET —ERT-_EZEEZE8 - F/\BILRT2AH
EE R PBREAMHEAER FRTAEZEGEENIIRESEXNTES - LI NERILLRE
REMEBAEERABA - BRIR_ZEAFETRARIARRBEEEAERESLEELEXARER

2o
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENRSREBAB/BNT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT B EEEAE

Mr. WANG Yueou FEB®EB 4

Chief Financial Officer of the Company

Mr. Wang, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 2013. He joined the Group since 2011
and was the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. Wang is currently the chief financial officer and a director of
Carnation Software Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun, and a director of i-Sprint. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in International Accounting from Jinan University, a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University
of Wales, United Kingdom and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Research Institute
of Tsinghua University.

RATZHBBE

IEE RE=ZTNR BB =ZFRAFRAZUBHEE - FR_T——FNBAKER L AREENB
IR o TRERREBRRZMBERAREMNOMAERRTERAR U BRERES - ARIi-Sprint 2E
EoIRAERAEEABREZHARSHBELEN  RERRAARRE 2 THERELTEM - URIFEXRS
MARRE L SRERAETHERBE LS -

Notes:

1.

Ms. CHAN Chung Lei, Joan FRHiEZ +

Company Secretary of the Company

Ms. Chan, aged 35, is the Company Secretary of the Company since 2013. She joined the Group since 2012.
Ms. Chan is also primarily responsible for the oversight of the internal audit matters of the Group. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Studies. She is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a Certified Internal Auditor of the Institute of Internal Auditors.

AARZARAHE

Rzt BWE=1THm BT =FER/AARZRAAME - RE-ZT——FNEAELEH - RLEINTEEE
BEEEAKEZANERER - RAEIHAEIREEELEMN - WIRABTESHNAEZE 8 RAIEAMG
BHEARBERITAD

Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward resigned as an Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company with effect

from 1st February 2013.

For identification purpose only

Edz v

. BISEAAREARTNTES  MHAERARWE R-T-—=F-A—HER-
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERRE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to
the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”). During the year ended 31st December
2013, the Company has complied with all the code provisions, save and
except for code provisions A.4.1, A.6.7 and D.1.4, details of which are
explained below. The Company regularly monitors and reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure these continue to meet the increasing
stringent regulatory requirements and to improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors
(the “Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company
and transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are

summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities
The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with
a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to
capital and overall corporate structure, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as

the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EMAR AR

Annual Report 2013 i

ARFIRRARMZEEERE AR ARBRERZ
EE2 ANHEEEH - WEBRESEDNEE
EBFEZLEERTER -

RABZEERERNIRBERBBEIIE
MRAFI (B3P ) B LR B ([ =R 81D Bt
R4 FTE 2R EERFAD ([KFRDD 2
[RA R SFRMESCIGIE c BE T —=F+_H
=+—H  ARARDETFHME TG - 1EREE
TAMESCEA L1~ A6.7TRDNAMEZIRE - BEE
HFERBRTXEE - ARFEHER KB ED
EEREH  UEREBFETHIREMEER
ERBERARERERAER

ARRRAEEFRG((EFG ) HELEEEA
B BRARFRHMERAGRES - XWHERAE
EBEFERBRAELEAMN -

ARBZ T2LEERRAURERGLMMT

EEg

BE

AR R ER$IE RRNERIMEE D 2 B
BE THEFRATEARRETERROM

=
5 °

EXxgRERLACRERRREE NS &
KRS R ER - ERARRZ BEERE - Alh
EEEER -

EEREUARFMEERETEIRTEE &
FEHEREBERER BARBELEREEY
¥ ABERREREERHE ARSI
RARFENETRZRS) WKEEH  &F
FrkHEbEERBEREESEE -

EREFHIZELBRE—ERER UK
ESARAWEZERRRY  EUBRRESSH
=R RMAEERRARRDIESEK -



THE BOARD (Continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request
to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the above mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience necessary
for independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of three Executive
Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents
one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready
(Vice Chairman of the Board, Member of Management Committee and
Investment Committee)

Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry
(Chief Executive Officer, Member of Management Committee and
Investment Committee)

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
(Member of Investment Committee)’

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Liankui
(Chairman of the Board, Member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Wang Weihang
(Chairman of Management Committee and Investment Committee)
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Young Meng Ying
(Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Lu Jiaqi
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee, Member of Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee)

Ms. Xu Peng
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Member of Audit Committee)

1. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon ceased to be a member of the Management
Committee with effect from 23rd August 2013.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 25 of this

annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules and is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
bring a wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and
independent judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings and affairs of the Company, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors make

various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures

for the appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are
available and accessible on the Company’s website at http://www.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board established
a Nomination Committee to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board, identify suitable candidates to the Board, and to make
recommendations on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-
appointment of members of the Board. Appointment of new Directors is

reserved for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with
a diverse range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge
necessary to oversee the Group’s business development, strategies,
operations, challenges and opportunities. The Nomination Committee takes
into account of that person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions
to the Company before making any recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process, with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and
selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
("AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting

after appointment.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although all Non-
Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term, they are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that issuers should have formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment. Although the Company did not have formal letters of
appointment for all Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of references have set out the work scope of
the Board'’s committees and delegation were made by the Board in respect
of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent

Non-Executive Directors) in such Board’'s committees.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Hu Liankui, Mr. Lu Jiagi and
Ms. Xu Peng shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for

re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The Company's circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM
contains detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for its Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors are arranged where necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Company has organised
a training session in October 2013 on connected transactions, inside
information disclosure and other relevant topics. The training session was
conducted by a lawyer with presentation and briefing materials. All the
Directors have attended the above training session.

Insurance Cover for Directors
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board and Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional

meetings on other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Board held five meetings.

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and the
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Board committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held BT ARAEZTENEEZESEE 0 UK
during the year ended 31st December 2013 are set out below: BAeZ @R EReREY T
Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship
REERHALE CETEERY
Special
Remuneration Audit  Nomination 2013 AGM General
Full Board ~ Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee —E-=F Meeting
Name of Director T EEg {MZEE® ENZEEE® REZ8T REAFAT HIRRAE
Executive Directors HYITEE
Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEE 5/5 N/A /A N/A 71 7
TEA TEA TEA
Hui Wing Choy, Henry #roket 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N 10
i TEA A
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 2 5/5 N/A N/A N/A il 1N
TEA @R TEA
Lau Ming Chi, Edward' B N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
@R TEA TEA TiEA TEA TER
Non-Executive Directors FHTESR
Hu Liankui tHEE 4/5 212 N/A 33 171 11
TEA
Wang Weihang T M 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 01
i F TEA A
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Young Meng Ying BHERS 5/5 212 4/4 3/3 17 1
Lu Jiaqi B 5/5 212 4/4 3/3 1”1 17
Xu Peng fhe 5/5 N/A 4/4 313 11 11
A
1. Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward resigned as an Executive Director, the Chief Financial 1. 28R EBHEAR Tiﬂﬁﬁi BRI
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1st —H'Mz RZE-—=F_A—HB4ENK- EtHE
February 2013. He also ceased to be a member of the Management Committee CEARTHEREREZEGKE -
with effect from the same date.
None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director. MR EREMEEEELE -
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a KREFEFEHEIIN BHE_T—=F1+=_H

meeting with the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors during the
year ended 31st December 2013.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served
to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and

committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days (or such other
period as agreed) before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have
a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance
of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.

Hu Liankui and Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(Continued)

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive
Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating
the organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board's approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective on 30th August
2013. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, independence and length of service. All board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight Directors. Two of
them are women. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of gender, professional background and skills.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to
time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Hu Liankui and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying and Mr.
Lu Jiagi. Mr. Lu Jiaqgi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management
and share options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and
other related matters. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
about these recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st December 2013. The works performed included the review of Executive

Directors’ remuneration package.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the Code
Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31st December 2013 is set out
below:

Remuneration band (HKD) Number of individual

Nil - HKD 1,000,000 2

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng,
among them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Ms. Young Meng Ying is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the management, internal
auditor or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the
work performed by the auditor, their independence, fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial

reporting system, internal control system and risk management system

and associated procedures.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st

December 2013. The works performed included the following:

(@  To review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures;

(b)  To review the reports form the external auditor, management letters

and management response;
()  To review corporate governance matters;

(d)  To review the matters in relation to the internal control and risk

management systems and internal audit; and
(e)  To review the re-appointment of the external auditor.
The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2013 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Hu Liankui and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr.
Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng. Ms. Xu Peng is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

In light of the amendments of the Listing Rules which became effective on
1st September 2013, the Board adopted a revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee accordingly. The revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@  To review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length
of service) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy;
(b)  To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) To access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

and

(d)  To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31st

December 2013. The works performed included the following:

(@) To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,

(b)  To review the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

() To make recommendation to the Board about the retirement and re-
appointment of Directors by rotation at an AGM for the Company;

(d)  To consider the composition of the Management Committee;
(e)  To consider the change of directorship; and

(f) To make recommendation to the Board the adoption of the Board
Diversity Policy.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship
of the Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant

statutory requirements and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises Mr. Wang Weihang
and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready and Mr. Hui
Wing Choy, Henry. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the Management
Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and
reviewing the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting,
and making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of
the Group. The Management Committee meets as appropriate and when
required to discuss the related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises Mr. Wang Weihang and three
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready, Mr. Hui Wing Choy,
Henry and Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman
of the Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and
evaluating existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company,
and making recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee
meets as and when required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31st December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing
its corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is responsible for corporate governance functions with the
following duties:

(@  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(¢)  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e)  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2013.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant

information which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 62 to 63 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
the existing external auditor of the Company, in respect of audit services and
non-audited services for the year ended 31st December 2013 amounted to
HK$1,250,000 and HK$46,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review
the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority designed to achieve
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations. The system is designated
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Company’s objectives.

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of internal control system of the Group. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. The Board is in particular considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
AGMs and other general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Non-Executive Directors,
and the Chairmen of all Board committees or their delegate will make
themselves available at the AGMs to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the Company’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear
communication and easy access to information about the Company.

The 2013 AGM was held on 15th May 2013. The notice of 2013 AGM was
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2013 AGM.

The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee or their delegate, and the Company’s
external auditor has attended the 2013 AGM to answer questions.

Code provision A.6.7 of the Code stipulates that Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

One Non-Executive Director did not attend the AGM and the special general
meeting of the Company held on 15th May 2013 due to other commitments.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. Save as provided under the
Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than procedural matters) are taken by poll and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after the
shareholders’ meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition
by Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company may convene a special general meeting (“SGM") by written
requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must
state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid requisition
is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same

manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened
by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings
by Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to requisition the Company
to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in
respect of any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a general
meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for

consideration at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@  either any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b)  not less than 100 shareholders.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and unless the Company
otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid
documents are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company

Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
15th Floor, Topsail Plaza,

11 On Sum Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2601 6998

Fax:  (852) 2601 6936

Email: asl_info@asl.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, a full time employee of the Company, who is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the Board
on governance matters and also facilitates induction and professional
development of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
of the Board. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules
and regulations are followed.

Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward (“Mr. Lau”) resigned as the Company Secretary
with effect from 1st February 2013. Ms. Chan Chung Lei, Joan (“Ms. Chan")
was appointed as the Company Secretary in place of Mr. Lau with effect from
the same date.

During the year under review, Ms. Chan has attended relevant professional
seminars to update her skills and knowledge, and has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the financial year ended 31st
December 2013.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Wing Choy, Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th March 2014
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its major
subsidiaries and associates are set out in Note 48 and 22, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2013 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 64.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2013.

2014 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on 21st
May 2014, and the register of members of the Company will be closed from
16th May 2014 to 21st May 2014, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify
for the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(which will be relocated to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 31st March 2014) for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15th May 2014.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 69 to 70 of the consolidated financial statements.

At 31st December 2013, the Group's special reserve and accumulated profits

totaled approximately HK$312,633,000 (2012: HK$310,823,000).

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the shareholders at
31st December 2013 included special reserve and accumulated loss totaling
approximately HK$95,457,000 (2012: HK$93,286,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group spent approximately
HK$4,295,000 (2012: HK$9,205,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December
2013 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 20.1%
and 7.9%, respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 39.8% and
11.5%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2013 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2013 in share capital of
the Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2013
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Lai Yam Ting, Ready

Hui Wing Choy, Henry

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Lau Ming Chi, Edward (resigned on 1st February 2013)

Non-Executive Directors
Hu Liankui
Wang Weihang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Young Meng Ying

Lu Jiaqi

Xu Peng
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr. Hu Liankui, Mr. Lu Jiaqi
and Ms. Xu Peng shall be retiring by rotation. All retiring Directors, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the Non-Executive Directors is the period up to
his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”), the changes in information of Directors of the Company are

set out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon has been appointed as a director of Beijing
Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd (“Teamsun”), the ultimate holding company
of the Group listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, with effect from 14th
March 2014.

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon and the Company have newly entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years from 1st January 2014. His directorship
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. Mr.
Leung is entitled to an annual basic salary of HK$2,175,000 and performance
related incentive payment, the computation of which is based on measurable
performance contribution of the Group. Mr. Leung’s remuneration was
determined by reference to his duties and responsibilities, experience,
performance and market conditions.

Ms. Xu Peng has been appointed as the principal partner of Beijing Lantai
Partners, a committee member of the 12th National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Chaoyang District of
Beijing and a supervisor in the eighth session of Beijing Municipal Lawyers
Association. She also resigned as an officer and partner of Beijing Hengde
Law Firm during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group engaged AsiaSoft
Services Limited, a subsidiary of AsiaSoft Company Limited (”AsiaSoft”), for
the provision of certain services (including software engineering outsourcing
services, other IT related services and rental services), and an approximate
total fee of HK$7,886,000 was paid or payable by the Group for such
services. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon, a Director of the Company, was
considered interested in such transactions by virtue of his directorship and his
disclosed shareholding in AsiaSoft.

Other than as disclosed in the above and the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” below, no contracts
of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies or
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31st December 2013 or at any time during the year
ended 31st December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st
December 2013, the following Directors were considered to have interests in
the businesses which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out
below:

EECEHNER
REE-ZT—=F+-_A=Z+—BLFER ' &
&£ B R 2 AsiaSoft Company Limited ([ AsiaSoft])
2 MiB X E) AsiaSoft Services Limited J24E%E T AR
B (BB TRINIRT - Ht BB EE
AR R ERT) - MASERABRBEE sk
et A 497,886,000 T2 B - ERARQF
EERENLER AsiaSoft 2B BB N IHE
2RI - WA AR B ST HEARER -
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TZAZT—BLEFERN WTEFHRAERE
ol 32 170 B N 6% (3] 2 S Bt T Bl P e B AR R [
EBBRGAF 2 EGT AR - HFBHII0
:

Name of the entities which
were considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

Description of businesses of

the entities which were considered
to compete or likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group

Nature of Director’s

Name of Director BRARASEERERDS BRARASEERBRDS interest in the entities
BEpng TEERRT ERELR THBRRE R ERHL ESRSER ERNE
Hu Liankui Teamsun Information technology product service, Chairman and director
application software development,
value-added distribution and
system integration
e EERK ERRERRY  EREARMEE . EEREEF
BEAHREREAR
Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Information technology related Chairman
Co. Ltd.
IREBBARBRBRAT AR BER
Subsidiaries of Teamsun Information technology related Director
(excluding Teamsun Technology (HK)
Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun"))
EBRN 2 MBAR (TREZEBRAME TABE AR %
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ExeWmE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EENBELE DS @

(Continued)

Name of the entities which
were considered to compete or

Description of businesses of
the entities which were considered

likely to compete with to compete or likely to compete
the businesses of the Group with the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's
Name of Director BARRASEERBRD BARRASEERBRS interest in the entities
BEpg LA £ TRBRRT ER 2 ERHEL EENZESER BEME
Wang Weihang Teamsun Information technology product service, Vice chairman and president, director,
application software development, and substantial shareholder
value-added distribution and
system integration
T EBRN EMRsERRY  EREARARE BEEREAY EERIERR

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Hong Kong Teamsun

BEEBRK

Subsidiaries of Teamsun
(excluding Hong Kong Teamsun)

EBRRWEAR (TRETEZBAR)

Teamsun

Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd.
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamsun)
RARBBRAR
(EBRK 22 ERANBAR)

AsiaSoft and its subsidiaries

BENHNERER

Window company of Teamsun in
Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients
of Teamsun in the PRC
and Hong Kong
EBRRAFEEEOLR  TEREBAK
ZEFPRABEREBRMBITHXE

Information technology related

THBE AR

Information technology product service,
application software development,
value-added distribution and
system integration

EMRsERRY  EREARARE
BESHEREGES

Information technology related

RBARRE

Information technology related

AsiaSoft RE B R 7 RREMMR
Notes: B E
1. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon has been appointed as a director of Teamsun with

effect from 14th March 2014.

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid
companies, and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group
is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length

from, the businesses of the aforesaid companies.

Annual Report 2013 &%

Sole director

K-E%

Director

%

Director’

=3

Director

s

Director and/or substantial shareholder

BER/REERR

1. RENGCECRZEREBRRZEE 8%

—ME=F AR

HREESEBUNLARRZETERALES
BEENESRE  AREMEIN LM AR 2
BARFHEATARRLER -
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EEgWmE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange (“Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as

EEZROKERKRS 2 EE

REB—Z=F+"A=+—H EF2RARQFAE
ZITRABRARRA REAAER AR (EEL
ErRAEGMEXVER) 28 - BEkD RE
FH AT ( )*EF ﬁ&ﬁﬂfﬂmﬁﬂ%xv*ﬁ%ﬂ&

8N BAMEARNF MMz R AR (B
R %&HHE?{\*EIZEW\KY?EZ*‘“VE&%&?EE

WRZERRKR) « R () RIBEEZ R HAE RS
%352 RRBRNZ I*XﬁﬁLZﬂaEﬂﬁZ%ﬁ&

B () RIR BT A%%Lﬁ%‘%?&%ﬁ@
TT 7 B ([P RI D ARG R D P2

K m%(F%%ZH&@&*QE@H&@Z%EDXZD
™

follows:
(a) Shares () K&
Approximate
Personal Family ~ Corporate % of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER Bz BARER RiEER AEER Hit @t BOl
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting, Ready 3,949,621 - - - 3,949,621 1.27%
Holdings Limited BEE
BYZREEBRAA
Hui Wing Choy, Henry 974,000 - - - 974,000 0.31%
FEKE
Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,070,000 ! - - - 1,070,000 N/A 2
(H.K.) Limited BEL NER?
BEES(EE)BRAR
Teamsun Hu Liankui 30,430,477 - - - 30,430,477 4.71%
EBRNK Fil S
Wang Weihang 64,587,446 - - - 64,587,446 10.00%
B3
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ExeWmE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EE RO KRBEEKRG 2 Em
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued) ()
(b) Underlying shares (Z) 1B 7
Personal Family Corporate
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total
NEER B AR RikER DRER Hit st
Automated Systems Hui Wing Choy, 2,609,000° - - - 2,609,000
Holdings Limited Henry
EEESHEIE ] YNG A
Leung Tat Kwong, 1,020,0003 - - - 1,020,000
Simon
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Leung Tat Kwong, 8,327,0324 - - - 8,327,032
("i-Sprint”) Simon
Notes: FiteE -
1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares. 1. WD AEIS ERERIEN -

2. The issued shares of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprised 55,350,000 2. BEEG(EA)ERARZDRITREHE

non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2 ordinary shares were 55,350,000 % £ 4% = RER FEAT f2 2 AR A% - 3%
beneficially owned by the Company. 2R BB ARNBIFTERIES

3. Options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company, further details of which are 3. AREARNTLEE - B E—SHEEHAT
set out in section headed “Share Option Scheme” below. O EERRRERTE]] —65 o

4. Restricted share units of i-Sprint confer rights to holders to receive existing 4. BRERZZ—=FtA+BERMZi-SprintgE

ordinary shares of i-Sprint at no consideration upon vest pursuant to the B EtEl - SRS HDBEMNEBER TIHEE A
employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint adopted on 10th July 2013. The TR AR EEIIRA-Sprint 2 LiE@A% o it
aforesaid plan was cancelled with effect from 12th February 2014. HEEWEN NN E-_RB+-—B&E% -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2013, none of the Directors B FX i R—E—=F+—-_HF=+—
and the chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in H BEBEEFELAANTNTETRAEHSEAE
Shares and Underlying Shares. F2D MARBEN D 2 i o
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ExeWwE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRRERTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 8th ARQARR-_ZTZT—F )\ f/\BERMNERETZ
August 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any  ([3%&t&]) - EEARA TR EMEMB AT Z
employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The £l 8 [ /& B2 E) & B3R - ZEH &R0
Scheme expired on 7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can no —Z——FN\A+HEm > Atk * KRB TEE
longer grant any further share options under the Scheme. However, all share B35 %t 213 — R LA - AW > W=
options granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect. ZT——F )\ At HBAIS R L Z A BIREKTIA
Details of the Scheme are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial BB+ RN LM © &t 2 2 B FBHEHNLER
statements. A IBEERMFE40

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options AR B ZERERFEAZ ZEBWT ¢
during the year:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RIRBRERFETZRE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled At 31st
At st during  during during during December Date
Participants January 2013 theyear  theyear  theyear the year 013 of grant Exercise  Exercise
RZB-ZE  Redlassification REE  REE REE REE RZ%-=F REERE period price
sz -B-H ELipk i ik RN miE#  toAST-A ] ] ikl
HKS
A
Directors
g2
Hui Wing Choy, Henry 690,000 - - - - - 690,000 1932012 19320130 £183.2022 1.09
S 1,919,000 - - - - - 1,919,000 252012 2520130 £15.202 1
2,609,000 - - - - - 2,609,000
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 510,000 - - - - - 510,000 1932012 19320130 £183.2022 1.09
RER 510,000 - - - - - 510,000 252012 2520130 £15.202 1
1,020,000 - - - - - 1,020,000
Lau Ming Chi, Edward® 270,000 270,000) - - - - - 1932012 19320130 £183.2022 1.09
Bl 1,656,000 (1,656,000 - - - - - 252012 2520130 £15.202 1
1,926,000 (1,926,000) - - - - -
Other employees 5,010,000 270,000 - - (1,020,000 - 4,260,000 1932012 19320130 £183.2022 1.09
AteEe 2,670,000 1,656,000 - - (660,000) - 3,666,000 252012 2520130 £15.202 1
7,680,000 1,926,000 - - (1,680,000 - 7,926,000
Total 13,235,000 - - - (1,680,000 - 11,555,000
Adt
=AY
Notes: B
1. All of the above options will be vested equally on each of the first, second and 1. FHEERESARERSRNE - FRE
third anniversaries of the date of grant, except for the options granted on 2nd ZRFERRENEE R T -——FHA-
May 2012 which will also be vested immediately in full in the event of a special AREHNERENRISEMREFRIRE - B
dividend of the Company being declared. GBI 528 -

2. Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward resigned as a Director of the Company with effect 2. B ABAERNRRESE  RZT—=F_A8
from 1st February 2013. —HRER -
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ExeWmE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR EERERMPAESF ZER
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed "“Directors’ Interests in Shares B FX [EE 2 RMDMHEBRMD 2ED | & [#E
and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time  BX#Est2) | A EESN - ADF) - E AR A
during the year ended 31st December 2013 was the Company, or any of &) ARNBRARSKMNBRARREZE T —=
its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any -+ = 8 =-+— B (-4 & A {£{a] B R4 £ 4 4 ]
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by — Z8F * BUE AR AT 2 EE A8 B AR 7 5 (7]
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any  EfhE A 82 > §% {5 =k (& 55 i F| o

other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND FREBEFEEXRZRBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group entered (1) REE-_ZT—=F+"A=+—HIFE

into the following transactions with its fellow subsidiaries, holding A AREBEERZRKBAR - HKRA A
company and ultimate holding company which constituted continuing MBI A AT BARYR BT AR BIRE AR
connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) SEEER S ([BERERS]) 250
under the Listing Rules: T~
Set out below are the Continuing Connected Transactions which TEREVBBEEBRAKEARATNNR_-Z
occurred during the year ended 31st December 2013 pursuant to a —=F=A-+—HIMZHEREERD
supply agreement and a distributor agreement entered into between EEBEREE T =Ft+_A=1+—
Teamsun and the Company on 21st March 2013. BIEFERETZIHFERERS -
Name of company Description of the transactions Amount
NCIRCE Rz it 2]
HK$'000
FET
Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 6,889
SRR REBRERENZ T2 S
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 865

REEBIRBA NN Z R

Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 867
REBFRBEE KUEZ &5

Hong Kong Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 252
EBEBRK AEBERERANINZ
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 114

AEEF IR A W2 £ 5
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ExeWwE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND #(EBEREXRZRBERS @
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1) Set out below are the Continuing Connected Transactions which (1) TX#&HF|BBEBRAKERATR-Z

occurred during the year ended 31st December 2013 pursuant to a —=F=-A-t+—HINZHEBEED
supply agreement and a distributor agreement entered into between HEmEREE T —=F+_A=1+—
Teamsun and the Company on 21st March 2013. (Continued) HIEFERNETZHBERERS - (B)
Name of company Description of the transactions Amount
NEEH X5z Hut X
HK$'000
FHET
Asiasoft Securities Ltd Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 3,850
TR LR ER QA REBBLRBEA LR S5
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 2,495

AEERBEA NI 2 25R

Beijing TongMap Information Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 40
Technology Co., Ltd.
IERFARBEERRMTERAR REBERRBANI N2 &R

ITMS Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. ~ Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 1,486
BRI UER) AR AR REBBRBEELH T2 8
Nanjing Teamsun Information Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 15,724

Technology Co., Ltd.
PR EBRKE SRMARAF REERERANIN &R

The above Continuing Connected Transactions are subject to various P ERERSREETARARAHAS
annual cap amounts disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24th T-=FMA - +HBAZEEHIEE L ZE
April 2013. Capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same 2E LR -BREEEAEIN  THEAZ
meanings as those defined in the aforesaid circular unless specified RIS EL i K P E A A HEDRE -
otherwise.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

)

(Continued)

The Company’'s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740, “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions
disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company

have reviewed and confirmed that the above Continuing Connected

Transactions were entered into:

(

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there were no
sufficient comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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SERERZRBEERS @)

@)

(&)
RRRZHBENCEREFREFTEGAMA
%A F BRI RBLERE 30005 [F
%R ERE S P BERIAINRIRT |
AR BERNITIESIE 7405 [1RBEEE LT
HR BB B B3 22 SR BRI B | DA R 3R AR
SERKBEMER S - KHBECRELTR
A 14A 38 IRE AR B R - it
HEHAKBE D HENSERERSHWE
RIMEEH

ARARE2RBYFATESCEMNE
R LMSERERST)

() EARTARR—MEBBEDE
GE

(i) - REEGIET WL ER
WX SRR - AREAEETF
PER IR T BLE =BT
FE=NREZIEETT R

(i) BREZSZAWEHEZ ERE
7 RERNBATAREFAR
DA 2 BRI -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EMAR AR

On 25th January 2013, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited (“ASLHK"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan
agreement with Hong Kong Teamsun, the immediate holding
company of the Company, for the provision of a three-month revolving
facility of up to HK$25,000,000 by Hong Kong Teamsun to ASLHK for
the Group’s general working capital purpose. The loan bears interest at
HIBOR plus 2.0% per annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand.
As at 31st December 2013, a total sum of HK$25,000,000 was
drawn and fully repaid by ASLHK. Interest expense of approximately
HK$125,000 was paid to Hong Kong Teamsun during the year ended
31st December 2013.

On 25th November 2013, Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
("GZASL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement with Carnation Software Limited (“Carnation”), a
subsidiary of Teamsun, for the provision of a three-month revolving
facility of up to HK$2,036,000 by Carnation to GZASL for the Group'’s
general working capital purpose. The loan bears interest at 6.00% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31st December
2013, a total sum of HK$2,036,000 was drawn and fully repaid by
GZASL. Interest expense of approximately HK$12,000 was paid to
Carnation for the year ended 31st December 2013.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the aforesaid loan transactions
constituted connected transactions of the Company. Such transactions
were (1) for the benefit of the Group; (2) on normal commercial terms;
and (3) not subject to any security over the assets of the Group. The
transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.
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@)

RZZ—=F—A=+HA BYERH(H
B)ERAR(BBRHZEE]) (KAARZ
2EHREWBAR) BEBERRE (KR
RICEBERAR) £ ERHBE - A
BRBEBEBAKNNASRGEBRE—
1 8% % 25,000,000/ T B E =@ A 2 &
REXRE  UEAEERE-—REEE
e BERIEBBRITRERSM2.0%F
MEFHE - BERMREREREE - »
—E-=F+-A=+—0 AHEHE
75 B 18 B (2 38 A 25,000,000 7T 2
ER-BE-_ZT—=Z#+-A=+—8H1t
FEARBBEBAXIAFERAZNA
125,000 7T °

MN-Z—=%+—A=-+h8  BEMNEE
EEEENEARAR(EMNREXE])
(ARElz2EHBHBAR) BEMNET
ATEMEMERAR(TEMNET]) (FEk
K ZMBAR) BT EXRBE REB
BEMETRENREEZRE—HES
2,036,000 AEI = A 2 BIREH @
B UEAEEAE-—REELES - BX
126.0%EF KB - AEETERERENR
EE -RZE—=F+-A=+—H &
NORB EEE fE I EE S $£2,036,0007%
TZBER - HEZZ—Z=F+=A=+—
ALEFERRBEMNEMXARERILA
12,000/87T °

R LR LRRIBERZSERA
RBZAERS - ZERFHT() RAEHE
MR © Q)R —RBEERTUETT - k)AL
BUAREEEERRR - Bt BB LD
A 14A.65(4) 15 - ZER SR RET
R AERBIUIRRAMEZRTE ©



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©)

On 10th July 2013, the Board adopted an employee share ownership
plan (the “ESOP"”) of i-Sprint, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
pursuant to which the participants of the ESOP were granted certain
restricted share units (the “RSUs”) and/or options (the “Options”)
(collectively the "Awards”) in respect of an aggregate of up to
49,962,192 existing i-Sprint’s shares (representing 30% of the
then issued share capital of i-Sprint). The RSUs will be vested at no
consideration, and the Options will be vested at an exercise price of
SGDO0.046 per i-Sprint's share, or at an exercise price per i-Sprint's
share to be determined by the Board (as the case may be), subject
to the fulfillment of certain conditions. The participants include Mr.
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon (a Director of the Company, the chairman
and a director of i-Sprint and certain of its subsidiaries) (“Mr.
Leung”), Mr. Ching Wai Keung (a director of i-Sprint and certain of
its subsidiaries) (“Mr. Ching”) and Mr. Chia Soon Fatt (a director of
certain subsidiaries of i-Sprint) (“Mr. Chia”). The RSUs granted to Mr.
Leung and Mr. Ching were 5.00% and 4.00% of the then issued share
capital of i-Sprint respectively and the Options granted to Mr. Chia was
0.60% of the then issued share capital of i-Sprint.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the grant of the Awards under the
ESOP constituted a possible discloseable transaction of the Company.
The grant of RSUs to Mr. Leung constituted a connected transaction
which was subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
The grant of RSUs to Mr. Ching and the grant of Options to Mr. Chia
constituted connected transactions which were exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

Details of the above are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15th July 2013. Capitalised terms used in this section shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the aforesaid announcement
unless specified otherwise.
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RZE—=F+tA+H EFTHEMN
i~Sprint (KRB 22 EMBHMBEBAR) 2B
BRMTE - ZABLHREERRTER
HIR D BB K, SRR IE (Ses [ 48 )) -
EHEE A&ZZE $£49,962,192RB A
i—Sprint B (15 i-Sprint & B B 2 1TREL A
230%) o W H R BIR G B AT R
BERE - M BRI AR i-Sprint 3%
P 0.046 T M TITHEERIKEFTSH T
B2 ERi-Sprint RMHTTEE RIBR M
E)ERE - ERBAXE TIRERATRR - %
rE2EERERERLE(RRAIES -
i—-Sprint X EREERi-Sprinta THEA
RIESE) ([RE4]) - BEREAE (-Sprint
EERi-Sprint B THEBRRIES) ([1E5x
4 1) BB A (i-Sprint & THB A A
BF)((#HEE]D BEFREERREL
HE SR IR BAL - 5 B i-Sprint & B
B3 /THAN5.00% & 4.00% » mEHTFH
S5 A BB B i-Sprint & B O BT AR AR
0.60% °

R ETRA - NMEERMFEETRE
ZEBBRARR -EARATRER
Z o BRI BL T RELBERA
RAZMERS » BBETEHRANETZ
IR AERE  EERRETEIRR
HEZRTE - REZBRHIRMDERM TI2%E
ERERETHEEDABRARTE 2
ERG  EERPET EWRAETZH
o NEMBLBERIEZARE ©

LRFBEEARAR-_E—=FtA
THRBERZAEARE - REHAEBAE
Sh - AEDFIERAFARE R AEER
HEBHERARE -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EMAR AR

On 28th January 2014, the Company, ASL Security Solutions Limited
("ASL Security”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), i-Sprint,
Great Ally Investments Limited (the “Investor”), Top Realm Global
Limited (“Top Realm”) and Superguard Global Holdings Limited
("Superguard”) entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to
which the Investor subscribed for 118,973,914 new i-Sprint’s shares
(representing 41.67% of the enlarged issued share capital of i-Sprint
following the completion of the Subscription) for a consideration of
US$9,850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$76,833,000) (the
“Subscription”). The completion of the Subscription is conditional
upon the fulfillment of all the conditions precedents by the parties to
the agreement.

On the same date, ASL Security, i-Sprint, Top Realm and Superguard
entered into a deed of share gift and trust pursuant to which ASL
Security transferred at nil consideration 9.44% and 7.90% of the
then issued share capital of i-Sprint to Top Realm and Superguard
for the purpose of new employee share ownership plans (the “New
ESOP") to be adopted by Top Realm and Superguard respectively (the
“Share Transfer”). Both Top Realm and Superguard are special purpose
vehicles set up, among other things, to hold the award shares on trust
for the benefit of the participants of the New ESOP.

The Subscription and the Share Transfer constituted a disclosable
transaction. Since the primary purpose of Superguard is to hold the
relevant award shares as trustee for the benefit of the participants
of the New ESOP to be adopted by Superguard, which include Mr.
Leung, Mr. Ching, Mr. Chia and Mr. Tang Wai Loong (a director of a
subsidiary of i-Sprint) (“Mr. Tang”), Superguard is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of Superguard being deemed an associate
of Mr. Leung, Mr. Ching, Mr. Chia and Mr. Tang. Accordingly, the
share transfer to Superguard constituted a connected transaction of
the Company which was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2013 i

BFERERIRBERZ @

4

R-_ZT—MmMFE—A=+NB " X27"
ASL Security Solutions Limited ([ASL
Security] * AR Bz 2 EBHBMERT)
i-Sprint ~ Great Ally Investments Limited
(MREE])  BHRFERATDITEHD
RAEGRIKIERER AR ([ER ) FTILR
B Bk REERE118,973,914
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(5)  On 28th January 2014, in view of the New ESOP and the proposed
pre-IPO Incentive Scheme, each of the participants of the ESOP
adopted on 10th July 2013 executed a cancellation letter consenting
to the absolute cancellation of the ESOP. The cancellation letters are
conditional upon the Completion of the Subscription. The Completion
took place on 12th February 2014 and i-Sprint has ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 28th January 2014, 4th February 2014 and 12th February 2014
respectively. Capitalised terms used in the section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the aforesaid announcements unless
specified otherwise.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every person
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
were as follows:

Number of ordinary

Name of shareholder

shares of the Company held

Directors’ Report

ExeWmE

SERERZRBEERS @)

(5) RZZT—mF—A=+NH: ENXFES
BhstalkEZFERNARABEAER/
g RZZE—=FtAT+HEMANEBR
MBS 2BEFLEHET  AETS
THZEBRMETE - FHERMHAFR
BEBRTKERAER - REFHEEORZ
T—F =+ =HZEK ' il i-Sprint B
BARAARRAZMBAT -

EFBEEDRERRBR - —HFE—
AZ+NB - —Z-HF-_A@BEER-F
—OAF-A+-BABERZAEREE - &
SEEAEIN - NE FER A AR
REMEEREBRFHERRE -

FERR

MoZ-=F+-A=+—H RERRAAT
FTEARABRM  THAL(AAAEERE
BT BRI AR A2 B SE R
AR E S RS ROIE XV B2 B3 HHA
CEINGE L 2 e T

Percentage of
issued share capital

BRREH AEFEZ2EBRRRAEAE %

Direct interest Deemed interest HBTREZ
=R 74 WRAER B

Hong Kong Teamsun 208,792,996 - 67.05

BAREBRK

Teamsun - 208,792,996’ 67.05

ERRK

Note: B E

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun 1. ERFRKREBEBRAKEZIBE BITRAS

and was therefore deemed to be interested in the 208,792,996 shares in which
Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2013, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2013, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the”Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31st December 2013, except as noted below:

a) with respect to Code provision A.4.1, all Non-Executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws;

b) with respect to Code provision A.6.7, one Non-Executive Director
did not attend the annual general meeting and the special general
meeting of the Company held on 15th May 2013 due to other
commitments; and

Q) with respect to Code provision D.1.4, the Company did not have
formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors.
However, the terms of references have set out the work scope of the
Board’s committees and delegation made by the Board in respect of
the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors in such Board's

committees.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st December 2013.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31st December 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times in the year ended 31st December 2013.
During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
the continuing connected transactions, connected transactions, accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of the
annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial
reporting and internal control matters.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2013, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$100,000.

AUDITOR

In July 2012, the Company’s former auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers
resigned as auditor of the Company, and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
was appointed as auditor of the Company. Apart from this, there has been
no change of auditor of the Company in any of the three preceding years. A
resolution will be tabled in the annual general meeting to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Wing Choy, Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th March 2014
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‘Q Grant Thornton
5

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
HERAGEEERALR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 64 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31st December 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December
2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

28th March 2014

Shaw Chi Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P04834
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

2012
—ET——4F
Note HK$'000
B FAT
Revenue PN 7 1,612,958 1,673,279
Cost of goods sold HE A (811,281) (811,551)
Cost of services rendered RHRE 2 A (651,179) (659,417)
Other income EAA 8 6,351 2,496
Other (loss)/gain, net HF (&18), W 9 (2,084) 2,809
Fair value gain on revaluation of BEHREVE 2 AR BERS
investment properties 20 6,600 7,700
Selling expenses HEBR (71,160) (94,064)
Administrative expenses THER (66,956) (75,300)
Finance income BRI A 10 1,415 1,545
Finance costs IR ID¥N (1,633) (282)
Share of results of associates i —YNCIE S 22 563 486
Profit before income tax FRET{SBLADR R 11 23,594 47,701
Income tax expense S A 15 (6,314) (6,507)
Profit for the year attributable to  AATREFEAELEERER
equity holders of the Company 17,280 41,194
HK cents HK cents
74l Al
Earnings per share attributable to &NQFRAFEAEBEEBREF
equity holders of the Company 18
Basic and diluted EARREE 5.55 13.23

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ ERE72EF 172 B 2 Wi KR & M #RER 2
financial statements. TRISREEL S ©
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss):

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Revaluation surplus of leasehold

land and buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of leasehold

land and buildings

Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on

translation of overseas operations

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

FREF

Ht2EKE(FR) :

HEFT ERESEE
BzAIEE
HETHREFELRR

HEL BT ERRS
B ZIRIETIA

HEZM i pe R ES T
EaayEE
BREBIEBIEREZR

RATRAFEFE AN
FREEWSERAE
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2012

T F

Note HK$'000
B5E FHT
17,280 41,194

19(a) 40,004 44,223
39 (6,600) (7,297)
(2,201) 3,307

48,483 81,427

BRER2EFNT2 EZMEBREAMERERZ
AR HRBREED ©
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As at 31st December 2013 R=Z—=F+=-F=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates

Finance lease receivables
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Finance lease receivables

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Amounts due from customers
for contract work

Tax recoverable

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total assets

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Total equity

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Note
ks

19(a)
20
21(a)
21(a)
22
27
39

25
26
27
28

29

30
30

31

32

33(a)

MRE72EH 172 A2 MEBAREA
TARGRES ©

236,823
43,000
5,906

877

12,932

320

299,858

124,225

210,963

18,055

16,999

241,928

4,152

48

114,661

731,031

84,201

815,232

1,115,090

31,140
104,947
472,560

608,647

2012

T F

HK$'000
THT

211,754
36,400
11,817
36,247

804
21,487
1,441

319,950
102,756
237,471
18,802
19,476
224,856
243
3,987

116,677

724,268

724,268

1,044,218

31,140
104,947
437,915

574,002

I



Non-current liabilities
Trade payables
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance

Current income tax liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings

Liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

=
I

BERER

As at 31st December 2013 R=-ZE—=F+_-A=+—A8

2012
T F
Note HK$'000
B AE FHET
FRBEE
BB 55308 34 = 854
BEFSHEE 39 35,458 30,324
35,458 31,178
REIEE
BB S30E 34 224,208 230,924
HtbERERETER 35 47,262 66,046
TE Mz 36 115,356 130,252
BNERFRIS A& 2,972 908
HEiheriBE 37 - 8,239
MEEE 38 49,257 2,669
439,055 439,038
PEABEHEZLEERNZEBE
31 31,930 -
470,985 439,038
HmaE 506,443 470,216
BEZREE 1,115,090 1,044,218
RBEEFE 344,247 285,230
HEERRBEE 644,105 605,180
HU Liankui HUI Wing Choy, Henry
LS Bk B
Director Director
EZE EF

AR ERER S
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As at 31st December 2013 R=Z—=F+=-F=+—H

2012
T F
Note HK$'000
B EE FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - WE REE 19(b) 422 558
Intangible assets B EE 21(b) 500 500
Investments in subsidiaries KRB REZIEE 24 1 134,623
Deferred income tax assets EEFEEEE 39 290 736
1,213 136,417
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and EbEWIE - B Rk
prepayments SENNE 28 237,713 97,732
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBHEEED 30 1,120 2,301
238,833 100,033
Total assets HEE 240,046 236,450
Equity attributable to equity ANBRAEFE AELES
holders of the Company
Share capital &7 32 31,140 31,140
Share premium B0 B AR 104,947 104,947
Reserves [ 33(b) 97,929 95,202
Total equity s 234,016 231,289
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accruals Hih A RIBRIETER 35 6,030 5,161
6,030 5,161
Total liabilities S =Ri 6,030 5,161
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 240,046 236,450
Net current assets REEEFE 232,803 94,872
Total assets less current liabilities #EERREBERE 234,016 231,289
HU Liankui HUI Wing Choy, Henry
igE FRoK Bt
Director Director
3 2

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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At 1st January 2012

Comprehensive income:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss):

Revaluation surplus of leasehold
land and buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of leasehold
land and buildings

Exchange differences on translation

of overseas operations

Total comprehensive income

for the year
Transactions with owners:
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends
Final dividend for the year

ended 31st December 2011

Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments

Total transactions with owners

At 31st December 2012

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

R-E--f-A-H

2ENE
FREH
At 2@k (BR) -

BETHLEFTERRY

BELWRBTER
BHELZETHA

BEBNEHCERZR

FARANEER

BEAAZRS

RURERR R

BEBE-E——F
+-A=1+-H
IFEEZRERE
TR RER S
pd b3

BERAZRZAR

RZB-ZF
+=A=t+-R

Share
capital
B
HK$'000
TR

31,140

31,140

For the year ended 31st December 2013 &

Share
premium
i)
aER
HK$'000
TEL

104,947

104,947

Special
reserve
(Note (i))
RIGEE
(B ()
HK$'000
FiER

34,350

34,350

Annual Report 2013 &%

Property

revaluation  Translation

reserve reserve
nEEL 3]
A B
HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THL
83,844 1,099
44,223 -
(7,297) -
- 3,307
36,926 3,307
120,770 4,406

E-ET-ZF+-_A=t+—HUILEE

Share-based
payment
reserve

AR D A ERE
X fitEE
HK$'000
TER

1916

1916

1916

Retained
earnings
REEN
HK$'000

FiER

252,247

41,194

41,194

159

(17,127)

(16,968)

276,473

Total
k]
HK$'000
TR

507,627

41,19

44,223

(7,297)

3,307

81,427

159

574,002

BREREFENT2 B2 EBRGERBRKRZ

AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rERREER

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T— =&+ _A=+—HIFE

Special Property Share-based

Share reserve revaluation  Translation payment

Share premium (3 CX0)) reserve reserve reserve Retained

capital B4 REIE WEER EX URAAEE  earnings Total
BA wEE  (FE®) 53] 1 XfifkfE  REERN ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEx FHER F#x FHEx Fi#n FHEx FHER

At 1st January 2013 R-ZE-=F-A-H

Comprehensive income: 2EYE

Profit for the year FNEF

Other comprehensive Ht2ERE/(BB)
income/(loss):

Revaluation surplus of leasehold ~ E i RIEFEE R
land and buildings

Deferred taxation arising from HETHRETER
revaluation surplus of leasehold ~ B#E4L ZELHE
land and buildings

Exchange differences on translation &/ EMZERER

of overseas operations

Total comprehensive income ~ FR2EUHLE

for the year

Transactions with owners: HEEAZRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends 24t R%EMR &

Final dividend for the year REEE-T——F
ended 31st December 2012 TZA=+-8
IFEEZ KBRS
Recognition of equity-settled BRI RER
share-based payments 53
Lapse of share options BERZRBAT

transferred to retained earnings 2 KB IE

Total transactions with owners SEHFHA 2R ZEE

At 315t December 2013 W-B-ZF
tZA=1-R

Note (i) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the — &t () ANEEZEHREEER —NNLEFRR ARG

nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value ETHRIRITEESAR - BB IHBRRE
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group BITRMZEE - ERZREmETHARAR
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997. fRD 2 EE - WEZHEZ %5 -

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated — EAE 72 EF 172 B Z B4R & M HRET 2
financial statements. A RE S ©
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Operating activities
Cash (used in)/from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxation paid
Tax refund

Net cash (used in)/from
operating activities

Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries,
net of cash acquired
Transaction cost paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Dividends received from associates
Other investing inflow

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Included in disposal group classified
as held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

The notes on pages 72 to 172 are an
financial statements.

For the year ended 31st December 2013 &
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(3,204)

(6,626)

(618)
111

(10,337)

(8,255)

(4,295)
(7,237)

424

156
486

(18,721)

168,192
(111,968)
(1,633)
(15,570)

39,021

9,963

116,677
(482)

126,158

(11,497)

114,661

2012
—E-—F
HK$'000
FAT

46,818
(11,647)
(730)

775

35,216

(2,122)

(832)

(9,205)
(2,444)

209
155
973

70

(13,196)

3,470
(801)
(282)

(17,127)

(14,740)

7,280

108,404
993

116,677

116,677
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st December 2013,
its immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
ultimate holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Limited,
a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and its shares are listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The principal
activities of its major associates and subsidiaries are set out in Note 22
and 48 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 28th March 2014.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis except that the leasehold
land and buildings and investment properties are stated at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2013 &

(@) New or amended standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st
January 2013 and are relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements”, it
replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, “Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements” and
HK-SIC 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. It
builds on existing principles by identifying the concept
of control as the determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company. The standard provides
additional guidance to assist in the determination of

control where this is difficult to assess.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee. The
adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1st January 2013.

HKFRS 12, “Disclosure of interests in other entities”
includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of
interests in other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in Note 22 and 48.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

(@) New or amended standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st
January 2013 and are relevant to the Group:
(Continued)

o HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRS. The requirements do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance on how it should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted
by other standards within HKFRS. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has

provided those disclosures in Note 6.

° HKAS 1 (Amendments), “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, HKAS 1 (Amendments) require
additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions
are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive

income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The Group has chosen to retain the existing presentation
to present the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in two separate but consecutive statements,
other comprehensive income in these financial

statements has been modified accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(b) New or amended standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st
January 2013, but not currently relevant to the
Group:

(b) R=ZE—=F—A—HFK
2 BB B R SR I ER AR
B BN SR B 3 SR R 2 T

FT R RAEET -

HKFRS 7 (Amendments), “Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities”. The amendments introduce new disclosures
for all recognised financial instruments that are set
off under HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off under
HKAS 32.

HKFRS 11, “Joint arrangements”, which replaces
HKAS 31, “Interest in joint ventures”, divides joint
arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures, it
focuses on the rights and obligations of the arrangement
rather than its legal form. Joint operations arise where
a joint operator has rights to the assets and obligations
relating to the arrangement and hence accounts for
its interest in assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.
Joint ventures arise where the joint operator has rights
to the net assets of the arrangement and hence equity
accounts for its interest. Proportional consolidation of

joint ventures is no longer allowed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

(b) New or amended standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st
January 2013, but not currently relevant to the

Group: (Continued)

o HKAS 19 (Amendments), “Employee benefits”, improves

the accounting for defined benefit plans. Under the

revised standard, all changes in the present value of the

defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan

assets will be recognised in the financial statements

immediately in the period they occur. In addition, the

revised standard requires the changes in the net defined

benefit liability (asset) to be split and presented in the

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

- service cost (including past service cost and

settlements) in profits or loss;

- net interest on the net defined benefit liability

(asset) in profit or loss; and

- re-measurement of the defined benefit liability

(asset) in other comprehensive income.

The revised standard also includes more minor changes

to definition of short-term employee benefits (in respect

of the distinction between short-term and long-term),

the definition of return on plan assets, the timing of

recognition of termination benefits and various disclosure

requirements.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended

(b) New or amended standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st
January 2013, but not currently relevant to the
Group: (Continued)

o HKAS 28 (2011), “Investments in associates and joint
ventures” is substantially the same as HKAS 28 (2008)
except for the following:

- includes expanded guidance on how to apply
HKFRS 5, “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”, to an investment or a
portion of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale; and

- modifies the accounting required when there are
changes in interest which result in a change in
the nature of the investment but equity method
continues to be applied (i.e. an associate becomes
a joint venture, or vice versa). In such cases, under
HKAS 28 (2011), there is no re-measurement of

the retained interest to fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

(c)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning

1st January 2013 and have not been early
adopted:

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the
parts of HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement
categories: those measured as at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification depends on
the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard
retains most of the HKAS 39 requirements. The main
change is that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in
other comprehensive income rather than the income
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon its mandatory effective
date, which will be determined when the outstanding
phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

HKAS 32 (Amendments), “Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities”. The amendments clarify
the offsetting requirements by adding application
guidance to HKAS 32 to address the inconsistencies in
applying the criteria for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group is yet to assess HKAS 32
(Amendments)’s full impact and intends to adopt HKAS
32 (Amendments) no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1st January 2014.
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(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre I IRAR M

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

New standards, amendments and

interpretations have been issued but are not

effective for the financial year beginning
1st January 2013 and have not been early
adopted: (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) “Investment entities” apply to a particular class
of businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. It evaluates the performance of its
investments on a fair value basis. Investment entities
could include private equity organisations, venture capital

organisations, pension funds and investment funds.

The Group is yet to assess the Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)'s full impact and intends
to adopt the Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) upon its effective date, which is for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1st January
2014.

There are no other HKFRS or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are
not yet effective that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

(a)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a charge to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-

controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.

Annual Report 2013 %

(a)

FeaEEm)
BRSPS RN (B IR
g N BB 2 K AN H AT U AT
BB B FE KPR B 8 2 BeEET
2 - MARREBERFKENEAR
BEFEZAAREE AEENE
PR ©

FEEREREIFEREIMERER
ARRZMEA RS BAREE
FhUL IR SR A AT
A EEIMER - BUEA KB E B AR
ZENTEERAEER 2 EmAE
ABREE-

FEERERANGEABEERBRZE
HAZ2Y  BYRARRBRATHE
NG - AEBRAZIFER
BRI EABER M EE 2EK
wmRIEAR R B FEEA & K AR A
HEAZHASEREGEENREE
WasaRE 2 DR -

HARBRINBERAR 2 BEZEHT
BEHRKEGE  AERBRER
HAR MREGaBEENZERR
FEEREESESELAE UK
AR R EE)  EETHEHE
N WER L o

BARAEEKXEMEB QA ZEHE
B R RHEERNZMEAR
ZEREESETEMNEE  BEEZ
BERNESHER - IEMNB AR
EAEFRERARRREHEE
RZRARBEER M RESH
FIEERMEEERERZARE
B H(WER) BERERNEZ R
ARABDEZRERTK

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) Z5TEEARAR]

81



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

(b)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated income

statement or consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.
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Interests in associates (Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate
or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the investment
(or a portion of the investment) is classified as held for sale.
Any retained portion of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method. The
Group discontinues the use of the equity method at the time
of disposal when the disposal results in the Group losing
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the

joint venture.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any
retained interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance
with HKAS 39 unless the retained interest continues to be an
associate or a joint venture, in which case the Group uses the
equity method.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group'’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HKD or HK$), which is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(if) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement.

Annual Report 2013 i

(c)

(d)

(e)

FEHERRBEE (8)
RHERER  AEERERES
FHEAEIRANE E AT HAE
EEZTMERBFEARK - BRIER
B REER B ERARREE
©E - ERBERT  NEEERE
AN -

DERFHERE ZIERBERE (R
EHEMDZEERBERERAABE
SR AET B2 BIEE -

paliiE &

BENHzHRENANARTERE

>9&%%?%TET/\ZWEB#&%Z7?£§_

B FHARZEETGRIERKE

5?&%% CERARESEERY B
BREZ R -

ST

() DEEREIEK
REERT SRR
IR B 190 3%
P BSERS
BN E ))&
BEREABILES
%$Aazw%§%&¢
B2 25|E -

&

i

8

T}Nﬂdgmam-
]

Z

Z
=X
=

‘b::c
oS o> omp

(i)  RBRAEE
INERFIRZ H BN E
BE(WEMTEBEE)ZA
TERTE AT -
BNZERIRIRFREE
WEINEHN B EBEE
KB &P E & 2 ONE W e
BB ARGEBEEEPRE

7
o ©

ERRSRRSFEBW I
EhERBERGAERR
WNEF - A HEAMINE Y
REBRRGEREERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

(i)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
presented are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and

liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and buildings are stated at fair value.

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and

buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet

at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of

revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations

are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying

amount does not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets
previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase
is credited to the consolidated income statement to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment

is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost or

revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

10%-33%5%

Motor vehicles 20%

16%5%-50%

Furniture and fixtures

Computer and office equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated income statement. When revalued assets are
sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to
retained earnings.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investment properties.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each balance sheet date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair
value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity
as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if
a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.
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(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
the consolidated income statement as incurred. Costs
that are directly attributable to development activities are
recognised as intangible assets provided they meet the

following recognition requirements:

(@) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(b)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

()  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible
asset is demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or sale;
(e)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources

are available for completion; and
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(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
can be reliably measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the direct costs incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee
costs incurred on development activities along with an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of 3 to 4 years.

Customer relationships, software technology and
customer contracts

The acquired customer relationships, software technology
and customer contracts in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the assets,
as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years
Software technology 5 years
Customer contracts 3 months

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated
at cost less any identified impairment loss and are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.
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Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilities
The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets and

financial liabilities acquired at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that have maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”,
“amounts due from customers for contract work”,
“finance lease receivables”, “restricted bank deposits”,
and “cash and cash equivalents” as set out in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—BItFE

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(if) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”
"other payables”, “short-term borrowings”, and “other
financial liabilities” are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the

balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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(k)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-

measured at their fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group

of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset's
carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending
for customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less, and bank

overdrafts.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-A=+—HBILtFE

(q) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred

tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

In this case, the tax is also recognised in consolidated other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)

(ii)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the places/countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

(q) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(r)

(if) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(i) Offsetting

Income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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(s)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities,
as described below. The Group based on its estimates of
return on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred
to buyers (generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and
customer acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the costs
incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than installation
services and maintenance services, is recognised as revenue by
reference to the stage of completion, provided that the revenue,
the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion can
be measured reliably. Stage of completion is established by
reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total
costs to be incurred under the transaction. Provision is made
for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by the

management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the consolidated balance sheet, as a
liability, as receipts in advance. The balances will be recognised

as revenue when earned.

Installation services are generally provided incidentally to the
sale of a product, in which case they are recognised upon

satisfactory installation and customer acceptance.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line

basis over the term of the maintenance service contract.
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income

statement on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

leases.
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as
interest income over the period of the lease so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of return of the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest

method.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement
benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group’s contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for
the acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are
being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
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(v)

(w)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in the consolidated income statement on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Government grant that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are set-off with relevant expenses. Government
subsidies relating to income is presented at gross under “Other

income” in the consolidated income statement.

Share-based payment

The fair value of services received were determined by reference
to the fair value of shares and share options granted at the
grant date and expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the shares and share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment

reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of shares and share options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

When the shares or share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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(x) Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the consolidated income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived

from the leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property.

(y) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is

(2)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial

statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by

the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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(z) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(1

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of the collectability
of those receivables and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer and the realisation
of any repayment pattern promised. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate,
additional provision may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Capitalisation of development expenditure

Development expenditure are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and development
expenditure in Note 3(h)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to apply careful judgement when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for
development costs have been met. Judgements are based
on the best information available at each balance sheet
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the
research and development of new software, products or
knowhow are continuously monitored by the Company’s
management.
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(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i)

(ii)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note
3(s), the Group uses the percentage of completion (the
“POC") method to determine the appropriate revenues
to be recognised from rendering of services (other
than maintenance services). The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the actual costs incurred
up to the balance sheet date as a percentage of total
estimated costs of completion. When the outcome of
a POC contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred

that it will be probably recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties, leasehold land and
buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar leases and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers
the information from the valuations of investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. Had the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings would be different and
thus may have an impact to the consolidated income
statement.

Annual Report 2013 53§

(b)

st TREERRIR

7 2 B {F A R R 2 M R R
R BERE  MIFGHEHED
BEMz ERERAR - BHEX
RRERTEYRFEZEERR
i 2 BRI B (F ! EA AR 2 50

BERAHMT -

() Mz
1R 8 MY 5 3(s) At 2 & 5T I
B AEERATIBEDHL
EREERMRE (T RREE
& IR ) B e 738 2 B B UK
s TIPS EBEREE
BIEBEEEZBBERAST
TZEat@mRAZ B Dt
cEEIANHANZE
RABEAR ST A fEE - WK
BERSHORETEEREE
FRE AT [@ 7 (B0 TR -

(i) REYE HELHRET
ZIGE
RABEZ&EREREL
HEREMEHRIERT S
2 RATER - HRZ A6
AR ARESELeEE
RIEEEZ AR EEMK
B RIEH AR A%
[ f8 i SIS B fh fE A A
RATEEETZREY
¥ HELWREFTEER
BEH - WARFERTR
ZEERE REDE M
ETEBFZAAEES
BRIEA MEHaEREE
AL E -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) Z5TEEARAR]

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BORBREN

N

For the

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

year ended 31st December 2013 BE T —=F+-_A=+—HIFE

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill and other intangible

assets

In accordance with HKFRS, an impairment charge is
required for both goodwill and other intangible assets
when the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount, defined as the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. The Group’s approach
in determining the recoverable amount utilises a
discounted cash flow methodology, which necessarily
involves making numerous estimates and assumptions
regarding revenue growth, operating margins, tax
rates, appropriate discount rates and working capital

requirements.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company prepare the
annual budget taking into account of the provision of funding.
Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues, short-term borrowings and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt, if necessary.
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As at 31st December 2013, the Group’s total debt-to-total equity ratio
was 8.1% (2012: 0.5%), which is within the range of management’s

expectation and was calculated as follows:

Short-term borrowings (excluding
short-term borrowings of disposal
group classified as held for sale)

Total equity

Total debt-to-total equity ratio

HHEE (TeEsEREED
B2 HEERIZEREE

There are no changes on the Group's approach to capital risk

management during the year.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),

credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and

seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs
in United States dollars (“USD") and HKD. Foreign
exchange exposure to USD of the Group will continue to
be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to peg the
HKD to the USD remains in effect. There was no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore
no related hedging financial instrument was applied
during the year ended 31st December 2013 (2012:
same).

Annual Report 2013 53§

RoE-—=F+-"A=+—H A&EZ
BEBHAESEERR81%(ZE— =
F:05%) DRHAEEREZRMEE
WA TEE

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
T

49,257 2,669

608,647 574,002

8.1% 0.5%

AREBEEERNAR ZIERF AL EK

REBZEBAZZRUBEAR - Ti5E
B (BEINERR RAMXER) - EERR
MRBEZ R - AR BERRE R
BORETBITH AR Z 2BH% - U
NG AR LB B RRER 2 EETNE

BRERE -

(a) ™iZE
() SMNEREEE

AEBRR 2 BRREEZ
RAEFERET(ET) R
PEIT o B B RIIT R X
F—EERBTEE TE
BER - BIARNEEATRSEE
L2 HNE B B 7K S 5 a3
M-z —=F+=-A
=t—HIEFE WESEX
P R B 2 B b - B I A
FEREBESERERIA(ZT
— % : JERA) °

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) Z5TEEARAR]

105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-A=+—HBILtFE

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation in HKD variable interest
rate on bank deposits, bank balances and short-term
bank borrowings denominated in HKD and New Taiwan
dollars (“NTD"). The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments including bank balances and short-term
borrowings, at the balance sheet date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st December 2013 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$105,000 (2012:
HK$451,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate short-term
borrowings, bank deposits and bank balances.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises

from cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, as

well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding

receivables and committed transactions. The Group only places

deposits in reputable banks and financial institutions and

manages its credit risk associated with trade receivable through

the application of credit approvals, credit rating and monitoring

procedures.
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(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
trade receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables, bank balances and deposits,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset (Note 23) in the
consolidated balance sheet after deducting any impairment

provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Board, which has built a liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities. The Group
relies on its operating cash flows as a significant source of
liquidity.

The table below show the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities analysing into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal to their carrying balances, as the impact
of discounting is not significant.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. MKEREERAABES

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 25
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () R"BEMRRE
On demand or Carrying
within 1 year Over 1 year Total amount
R—ER BB—F @t FHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET Fax FHT Fax
At 31st December 2013 RZZ-ZF+ZA=+-8
- Group -F&5E
Trade payables ENE S8
Other payables Hh R F0R
Short-term borrowings RHEE
At 31st December 2012 RZB-ZF+ZA=t+-H
- Group -Xr£E
Trade payables EREHHE 230,924 854 231,778 231,778
Other payables HAERIE 13,996 - 13,996 13,996
Other financial liabilities Hihemas 8,239 - 8,239 8,239
Short-term borrowings REEE 2,669 - 2,669 2,669
255,828 854 256,682 256,682
At 31st December 2013 RZZ-ZF+ZA=+-8
- Company —KRH
Other payables Hib R
At 31st December 2012 R=Z-Z£+=ZA=+-H
- Company -A&A7
Other payables HAERRIE 120 - 120 120

120 - 120 120
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(d) Fair value measurement

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying value less impairment of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
customers for contract work, finance lease receivables,
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, other payables, short-term borrowings and
other financial liabilities approximate their fair values due
to their short maturities. The fair value of non-current
portion of finance lease receivables and trade payables
are disclosed in Note 27 and 34.

Fair value of non-financial assets

The following table presents the Group's properties
measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 31st
December 2013, categorised into the three level fair
value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value

Measurement”:

o Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1
inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement dates.

o Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs,
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet with
Level 1, and not using unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

o Level 3: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

Group

Recurring fair value

measurement

TEE
HEMDAREE
A&

Investment properties (Note 20) &3 (i3t 20)

Leasehold land and
buildings (Note 19)

HELME
BF(MEE19)

Level 1
-
HK$'000
FHET

During the year ended 31st December 2013, there were

no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings and investment

properties were stated at valuations made at 31st
December 2013 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
an independent professional valuer at market value basis

which is determined by reference to market evidence of

recent transactions for similar properties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties
— Hong Kong
REME
BB

Leasehold land and buildings

— Hong Kong
HELIRET
—&BE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Valuation techniques

EEFRX

Market comparison
approach
TS EDA

Market comparison
approach
DIk 1d 197

Unobservable input

(d) DAREEFTEW)

(i)

Level 2
B
HK$'000
FHET

(ifi)

TABRRHARE

Discount on quality of

the buildings
BFEEIE

Discount on quality of

the buildings
BPUBITE

Annual Report 2013 i

Fe@EERIEEE)

Level 3 Total
F=E st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
43,000 43,000
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HKREREERALEES

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

B
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 2AAEEFE®)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) BEAFEF=EIALIEEITERN

(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties and leasehold
land and buildings located in Hong Kong is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s buildings compared
to the recent sales. Higher premium for higher quality
buildings will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

EH (&)

UNEBZREMERBE
THERBFZAAEETE
RWBLEA2E QRS
SAALEENESFIRZ
HEERMET  LEAE
EMELE2FEHAR - 54
EMENEFTERDHE AL
AEABRSHAAEETE -

AEEF=EAABEME

Leasehold
Investment land and
properties buildings Total
REYWE HEITHRETF st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FET FERT
At 1st January 2013 RIT—=%F
—H—H 36,400 189,900 226,300
Depreciation charge wEMR - (5,504) (5,504)
Fair value gain DR EERE 6,600 - 6,600
Surplus on revaluation EXEYaey3 - 40,004 40,004
At 31st December 2013 RZZT—=%F
+=ZA=+—8 43,000 224,400 267,400

Fair value gain of investment properties is recognised in
the line item “fair value gain on revaluation of investment
properties” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land and buildings are
recognised in other comprehensive income in “property
revaluation reserve”.

KEMENAABAERER
FeBmR N [EHEEY
EXAfEEYSRE TR

5
=il
o ©

HMELHWREFZEMH AR
REMEEREE [MESR
[ TR B PRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AL =+ é\

irE MR

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-A=+—HBILtFE
Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods

sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and allowances,

and revenue from service contracts, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods HEEMm
Revenue from service contracts R B IRTEA £ 2 WA

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board.
The Board reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess the
performance and allocate resources. The Board has determined the
operating segments based on the Group'’s internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2012: two) operating
divisions — Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and
Information Technology Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information
to the chief operating decision maker. The business nature of each
segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products
Being the business of information technology in supplying of
information technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions and managed services.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE) & &EBR2AE  Annual Report 2013 Gz

WA EAREERINAE P AL EER(H
BRRERITH) RRERBEHEAZEKR
KW 2 %5 RO

2012
T F
HK$'000
FHET

890,469 905,002
722,489 768,277

1,612,958 1,673,279
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RAMBHARH ([ MBS ]) - bt
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BEMAT

EANRER
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ES R

AR RS

BB RAES MU RERIRY - B
REERFRZ TRIERERREZ AN
BHEER -



Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Year ended 31st December 2013

Revenue from external customers
Intersegment revenue

Segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Segment depreciation

Segment amortisation

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to intangible assets

Year ended 31st December 2012

Revenue from external customers

Intersegment revenue

Segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Segment depreciation

Segment amortisation

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to intangible assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE
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HEEBZ A RERZFIT

BE-Z-—=Ff+-A=1+—-HLHFE

890,469
28,182

918,651
31,903
325,471
214,365
1,483

235

722,489
30,238

752,727
49,617
305,971
134,999
10,448
3,116
3,267

7,237

1,612,958
58,420

1,671,378
81,520
631,442
349,364
11,931
3,116
3,502

7,237

HE-_Z——F+-A=+—"HLFE

IT Products
BB ER
HK$'000
FAT

905,002
16,252

921,254
38,368
294,450
210,656
1,623

359

IT Services
BRI RS
HK$'000
FHET

768,277
32,822

801,099
71,460
379,590
167,623
10,834
2,559

5,592
3,245

Total Group
HWEAERE
HK$'000
FAT

1,673,279
49,074

1,722,353
109,828
674,040
378,279

12,457
2,559

5,951
3,245

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 X5t AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-A=+—HBILtFE

(a)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Segment accounting policies

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’'s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Performance is measured based on segment profit that is used
by the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are
allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before income tax,
excluding unallocated other income, other gain or loss, net,
share of results of associates, gain or loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, unallocated depreciation for
property, plant and equipment that are used for all segments,
fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties, finance
costs and other corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs
and other general administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates,
deferred income tax assets, restricted bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, unallocated corporate assets (mainly include
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and part
of intangible assets that are used by all segments, prepayments,
deposits and tax recoverable) and assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale.

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities, unallocated corporate
liabilities (mainly include accrued charges of the head office
and short-term borrowings) and liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale.

Annual Report 2013 i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
are reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of
the Group as follows:

Revenue 'ON
Reportable segment revenue AR E 2 AU
Elimination of intersegment revenue  fifi #5428 UK A
Revenue per consolidated income REFEERR
statement HIFREIUTA

Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of
profit mark-up.

Profit or loss B

Reportable segment profit Al ¥R 5 2B Al
Unallocated amounts: ROBEFIE

Unallocated other income
Unallocated other (loss)/gain, net
Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties
Unallocated (loss)/gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment
Unallocated depreciation
Share of results of associates
Finance costs

Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit before income tax per

consolidated income statement

RO BEEABIRA

RO EEMF (E1E), e

EfEEMEZAAEE
Wegs

AOEHEME - BE R
FiEz (B8 E

ROBITE

i NIES ]

BATERRAR

RABRARFX

SESEiSE e )
BRFTS % ﬁﬂmﬂ

(b) WHEZZHWA ~ B

EEREENYEER
AEZHHBA - Bn - BEER
BEEAEBCEERBEERE
BEHERENAT :
2012
—E—-—F
HK$'000
T
1,671,378 1,722,353
(58,420) (49,074)
1,612,958 1,673,279

7 AR U AIR AN AN AR YEER

2012
—T——F
HK$'000
FHET
81,520 109,828
5,524 2,404
(2,017) 2,843
6,600 7,700
(6) 22
(5,398) (5,794)
563 486
(1,633) (282)
(61,559) (69,506)
23,594 47,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HZ—_Z—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Assets BE

Reportable segment assets AmEDEEE

Unallocated assets: ROLEE :
Interests in associates BN Bl
Deferred income tax assets RIEFISRHEE
Unallocated restricted bank deposits K2 B 52 R HIR1TE 7K
Unallocated cash and cash ROMERE RS EEY

equivalents

Unallocated corporate assets RAOMRAREE

Assets of disposal group classified DEABIEHE ZHE
as held for sale WrlzEE

Total assets per consolidated WirEEERBRYIR
balance sheet BERTE

Liabilities 8fE

Reportable segment liabilities ARED AR

Unallocated liabilities: KOLBE
Current income tax liabilities BNERAFFS A&
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFSHERE
Unallocated corporate liabilities FoV2 N WNCIREY

Liabilities of disposal group DIERFEHEZHE
classified as held for sale ARz aE

Total liabilities per consolidated RirE EEBBERIIRN

balance sheet

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR
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(b)

AHREZDRWA ~ B

EERBENHERE®
2012
—E——F
HK$'000
T
631,442 674,040
877 804
320 1,441
48 3,987
114,661 116,677
283,541 247,269
1,030,889 1,044,218
84,201 -
1,115,090 1,044,218
2012
T F
HK$'000
FHIT
349,364 378,279
2,972 908
35,458 30,324
86,719 60,705
474,513 470,216
31,930 -
506,443 470,216



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment

(b) WHEZZHWA ~ B

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EERAEENHERE®
(Continued)

The Group’s businesses and segment assets are all located in AREBEBERDLEELITHARN
the respective place of domicile of the relevant group entities HEEETRERE a2k
which include Hong Kong, China, Macau, Singapore, Taiwan BEREBR - RPY  BFn -
and Thailand. BB NTE -

Place of domicile

Hong Kong
China
Macau
Singapore
Taiwan
Thailand
Others

FriEste

B
HE
LA
FI

AN ]
2=

F=E
Hith

Annual Report 2013 53§

Revenue from
external customers
REIMBEF ZBA

2012
—E——F
HK$’'000
FHET

1,350,839 1,410,798

67,894 30,876
55,983 53,210
49,645 55,418
52,619 83,139
28,909 36,412

7,069 3,426

1,612,958 1,673,279

Specified
non-current assets
EEFRBEE
2012
—F—_F
HK$'000
FET

284,663 246,646

692 864
925 905
- 47,852
20 172
306 583

286,606 297,022

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) Z5TEEARAR]
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fRARTEIRRM

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HzlA
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Sundry income TR 1,961 -
Interest on bank deposits HRITF A 156 155
Rental income from investment REEEME ZB2RA
properties (Note 20) (fF3E20) 2,594 1,862
Government grants PEgeE 827 -
Others Efth 813 479
6,351 2,496
9. OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN, NET 0. i
2012
T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred consideration payable FERHEERE
— Fair value (loss)/gain —AREBE(EE) kS (16) 3,124
Exchange loss, net & X BB FE (2,218) (380)
Fair value gain on forward foreign RESNES R 2 AR BEWER
exchange contract - 254
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, LEME - BEREBZ
plant and equipment sk, (E518) 150 (189)
(2,084) 2,809
10. FINANCE INCOME 10. BAFWA
Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon WAV RE A A BERRER K
initial recognition of loans and receivables to their fair values (2012: U R IAR ERBIRE N (2 ——4F -
same). MR °
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

Profit before income tax is arrived after charging/(crediting): B BT AR AE I A8 30RR 7 (GEA) THI&
I8
2012
—F——F
HK$'000
FAET
Auditors’ remuneration: ZHMME
Current year REE 1,758 1,618
Underprovision in respect BEFERETR
of prior year 3 216
Depreciation and amortisation: reER#E -
Property, plant and equipment Y - WERE 17,329 18,251
Intangible assets (included BIVEE (BIEERERS
in cost of services rendered) L) 3,116 2,559
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEME - BERREZ
property, plant and (Wz5), /&8 (FizE41)
equipment (Note 41) (150) 189
Directors’ remuneration (Note 13) E=2ME (MEE13) 10,734 18,078
Employee benefit expenses EERMAX (TREEEHE)
(excluding directors’ (fF3E12)
remuneration) (Note 12) 475,118 536,266
Interest on loan from the BEEERABMERAE
immediate holding company 125 -
Interest on loan from a ) 2P /B A RS RALE
fellow subsidiary 12 -
Interest on short-term bank AR —FRNBHEE 2 BERTT
borrowings wholly repayable BRGHLE
within one year 1,103 20
Other interest expenses HibFI B H 393 262
Operating lease rentals LEHRERS -
in respect of:
Office premises YNEX Y ES 9,328 7,984
Computer equipment B R - 12
Bad debt expenses ZERAEE = 69
Provision for impairment of e E 5 FIBRE
trade receivables (Note 26) A8 (FIsE26) 562 793
Reversal of provision for e E S FRIE 2 BB
impairment of trade B ERE P (M5 26)
receivables (Note 26) (175) (179)
Provision/(reversal of provision) FERERE ()
for obsolete inventories 303 (314)
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ARARTEIRRM

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING

12. EERAAX (TEEES

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION) <)
2013 2012
—E—= —E—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 439,412 486,200
Performance related KRB BEEIELL
incentive bonus 22,687 39,313
Equity-settled share-based AR D BERESZ 2%
payment expenses 1,125 1,104
Retirement benefit scheme RREFET SR
contributions 11,894 9,649
475,118 536,266
13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEM<
2013 2012
—E-=F%F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Fees W 594 718
Other emoluments: HuEe -
Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 7,188 8,423
Performance related KRB BEEIELL
incentive bonus 1,822 8,029
Retirement benefit scheme BIREFFT B AR
contributions 528 96
Equity-settled share-based AR BERZ N 2
payment expenses 602 812
10,734 18,078
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F +—A=1+—HBIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 13. EEM &€ @)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2012: eleven) RABENHEE N (ZE—ZF : +—
directors were as follows: M)EEZHMEWT -

Year ended 31st December 2013
BE-Z-ZFt-A=t-ALEE
Performance

related

incentive  Retirement Equity-settled

Salaries bonus benefit  share-based
and other (Note a) scheme payment
benefits FBEH contributions expenses
Fees HER  2RBRA BAER MRGRER Total
Name of director Bspg ik At 3RA (Miita) SRS XAzZEX B
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TARL TARL THET THR

Lai Yam Ting, Ready B2

Hui Wing Choy, Henry e

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon REX

Lau Ming Chi, Edward (Note b) g% (Mth)
Hu Liankui Bk

Wang Weihang T

Young Meng Ying P

Lu Jiagi 2

Xu Peng i
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

Name of director EESE

Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEE

Hui Wing Choy, Henry Skt

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon Rt

Lau Ming Chi, Edward (Note b) 2% (Biztb)
Hu Liankui ik

Wang Weihang THA

Chen Zhaohui (Note ¢) IREE (FizEc)
Young Meng Ying Hak

Lu Jiagi G35

Xu Peng i

Zou Zhiying (Note d) FFEE(Wizd)

Salaries

and other

benefits

Fees Hek
ik E gl
HK$'000 HK$'000

TETL TR
- 935

- 3,541

- 2328

- 1,619
70 -
50 -
2% -
212 -
176 -
164 -
2 -
718 8423

(@  The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a
percentage of profit for the year of the Group.

(b)  Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward resigned as an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1st February 2013.

(¢)  Mr. Chen Zhaohui resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 20th June 2012.

(d)  Ms. Zou Zhiying was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company in replacement of Mr. Chen Zhaohui on 20th June
2012 and resigned with effect from 30th November 2012.

During the year ended 31st December 2013, no remuneration

has been paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group and no directors have waived any

remuneration (2012: same).

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR
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Year ended 31st December 2012

HE-Z-——E+t-A=t-BIEE

Performance
related
incentive Retirement  Equity-settled

bonus benefit  share-based

(Note a) scheme payment

FREB  contributions expenses
BB RIKEN AR BER Total
(Wzka) SRR SRZEX B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL TAL TEL

1,941 (546) - 2,330
3,762 306 381 7,990
1,521 190 148 4,187
805 146 283 2,853
- - - 70

- - - 50

- - - 24

- - - 212

- - - 176

- - - 164

- - - 22

8,029 % 812 18,078

(@) RABMzBBEANRAEEF
EENZ AR LEE -

(b) BIHTELEBEIARRTNTES
BT =F_F—HB4EN-

(0 MEBELEHTAQAAERTE
£ BT -FXA-t+HEL
o

(d) BEEZEIWN-_TB——F A=+
HEZTARQRENITESNE
BRI A WEHT AR
BT —Ft—A-THBER-

BHE-_T——-F+-_A=-+—BLEEFE"
REETER/GEENAREET N2
Me  WRAEEREEMMNE(ZE—=
F AR
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AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F +—A=1+—HBIEFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included two
(2012: three) directors as at 31st December 2013, details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 13 above. The remuneration of the
remaining three (2012: two) highest paid individuals for the year were

TERESHZER

RZZ—=F+-A=+—HB ' FREZ
BEHvREEAE _Z(ZE——F: =
BIEE FEZMeFBER B
BHWE - FRNHEB=R(ZT——F: =

as follows: Bz EEZMNESFHBOAT ¢
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Salaries and other benefits Fe REAmET 3,740 2,323
Performance related FIRBRE 2 BEENIEAL
incentive bonus 3,500 3,241
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAE TSI
contributions 191 25
Equity-settled share-based AR D BER I 2%
payment expenses 82 174
7,513 5,763

Their remunerations were within the following bands:

wEZHENFTHIEE

Number of individuals

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #&7C % 2,000,000 87T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T % 3,000,000 /7T

RAH
2013 2012
—EB—-=fF —E-C5F
1 —
2 2
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

Current taxation: BNEATRIA :
Hong Kong profits tax BEBENEB
Overseas taxation INRIE

(Over)/Under-provision in BEFE GBEEE),
respect of prior years: BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BEENEH
Overseas taxation YEINRTE

Deferred taxation (Note 39): IRAERIIE (M E39) -
Current year REE

Income tax expense FSfiMx

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries
and regions in which the Group operates.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 81 &t &EBR2AE  Annual Report 2013 Gz

2012

—ET——F

HK$'000

FAET

4,331 6,935
984 696
(184) (223)
615 (13)
5,746 7,395
568 (888)
6,314 6,507

EAEFE R 1R B2 [ 5 AR B i A
B E16.5% (2T ——4F : 16.5%) {EH
Bt o BINEF 2 BB B AF E (5T
ERHEFNRAERCEELTIERRR
@7 WITHRAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)

Tax effects of:

Expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Income not taxable for
tax purpose

Effect of different tax rates of
overseas operations

Tax losses not recognised

Under/(over)-provision in
prior years

Others

Income tax expense

R PT1SBLAT &

BEBMNEHHE165%TE Y
RBE(ZZE—=%F :16.5%)

BBTE -
B A TR ATHIALZ X i

FEBLRE 77 T T E AR B2 A

BSINEBEE
TRABRE 2 ZE

RIER Z BIAER
BEFEBEETR

S GBRERME)
Hity

PSR

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 26.8% (2012: 13.6%).

AR B TS B A& A 2 B0 28 HLER R 53
RAEFFERGNZINETFOREFHZE
MERZERNT

2012
T F
HK$'000
FHET
23,594 47,701
3,893 7,871
2,427 1,916
(2,856) (2,077)
(562) (24)
1,294 1,045
431 (236)
1,687 (1,988)
6,314 6,507

I EAHEH268% (ZT——4F :
13.6%) ©

Annual Report 2013 3f  Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE) R FEEBR AR

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

Dividends recognised as distribution RERERBDIRZRE
during the year:

Final dividend in respect of the year ended #HZEZT——F+=-A=+—H

31st December 2012 of 5.0 HK cents IEFE 2 RER S EAR 5.0 41l
per share (2012: year ended —EF HE_T——F
31st December 2011 of 5.5 HK cents +—A=+—BHUEFEZRH
per share) % B &A% 5.5 81L)

Dividends proposed: BRAR S -

Final dividend in respect of the year ended #HZE-FT——F+=-_A=+—H
31st December 2012 of 5.0 HK cents L8 2 REAAR S G R% 5.0 8L

per share

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31st December 2013 (2012: 5.0 HK cents per share).

Of the consolidated profits attributable to equity holders of the
Company, a loss of approximately HK$359,000 (2012: HK$3,653,000)
has been dealt with in the Company’s financial statements.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the
year:

Amount of consolidated loss attributable RN B REANRIE 2

to equity shareholders dealt with in BAIEE ANELERE
the Company’s financial statements EEEE

Final dividend from a subsidiary F AL R R E — S
attributable to the profits of the N A — AR B s A
previous financial year, approved Z ARHARR B

and paid during the year

Company’s profit for the year (Note 33(b)) AN A1E Ui A1) (B 5 33(b))
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2012
—ET——F
HK$'000
FHT

15,570 17,127

- 15,570
EEVTERREBRE_FT—=FFT=A

=t —HIEEFEZARHRE(ZZ——F:
A% 5.0781) -

ARRRAFEARIEGEESBHNS - BE
#9359,000% 7T (=& — =4 : 3,653,000
PEIC) ERA DRI SRR N -
SR AR R F R 2 H8R
2012
—E—-—F

HK$'000
TET

(359) (3,653)

18,000 4,000

17,641 347



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

to equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity

holders of the Company

Earnings for the purpose of basic and

diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of deemed issue of shares under

the Company’s share option scheme

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

R ESRER L #E
B2 BH

R E S RERRF
Z BB T 9

RBA QR SR HTT

By

RAFTESRE SR
Z BB IRE T 9

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December 2013
and 31st December 2012 is the same as the basic earnings per share

as the conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation to the

outstanding share options would have an anti-dilutive effect to the

basic earnings per share.

Annual Report 2013 3f  Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE) R FEEBR AR

RRBEATBEAREERERNLREER

MR T BERE

RRATREIFEARESREF

2012

—E——F

HK$'000

T

17,280 41,194
Number of shares

RHOEE

‘000

FR

311,403 311,403

311,403 311,403

HE-_ZT—=F+ZA=+—A8BRKZ=F
——H+-A=+—RILFE SEEE
BN EGRERAFER - HEEETE
BRERBAR R BN EITH L AR

BEIRREEYR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 %

(@) Group

E

=FE+ZA=+-HIEFE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

At 1st January 2012
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st December 2012

Opening net book amount

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation and
amortisation charge

Exchange realignment

Revaluation adjustment

Closing net book amount

At 31st December 2012

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount
Comprising:

At cost
At valuation

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HETHR
BF
HK$'000
Fin
W=E--£-A-A
ARG (E 149,900
2ithe -
REFE 149,900
BZ-T--%1ZA
=t-ALEE
HOEmE 149,900
RE -
& -
TERBHIG (4,223)
EH A% -
BRHE 44223
HREmFE 189,900
R-E--&
+=ZA=t+-H
KA GE 189,900
25t -
REFE 189,900
afE:
A -
e 189,900
189,900

Furniture
and
fixtures
BRREE
HK$'000
TATL

28,923
(25,132)

3,791

3,791

2,895
(213)

(1,784)

4,700

29,645

(24,945)

4,700

29,645

29,645

Annual Report 2013 i

(a) &=&£E

Computer
and office
Motor equipment

vehicles BER
AE HAERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THr THR
2,434 118,376
(2,047) (95,542)
387 22,834
387 22,834

- 6,310
- (185)
(248) (11,996)

1 51

140 17,014
2,146 120,775
(2,006) (103,761)
140 17,014
2,146 120,775
2,146 120,775

Construction
in progress
TR
HK$'000
TERT

Total
e
HK$'000
THET

299,633

(122,721

176,912

176,912
9,205
(398)
(18,251)

63
44,223

211,754

342,466
(130,712)

211,754

152,566

189,900

342,466



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MH AN

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F +—A=1+—HBIEFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 19. V¥ - BMERSEH —KEE
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) )& NI
(a) Group (Continued) (a) FKEE@®)

Leasehold Computer

land and Furniture and office
buildings and Motor  equipment Construction
HETHEK fixtures vehicles EEK  inprogress Total
BT GRREE RE  BAERE ERIE b
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
TARL TER TER TER TER TER

At 1st January 2013 R=2-=§-B-8H
Cost or valuation A (A(E
Accumulated depreciation RithE
Net book amount RHEE

Year ended 31st December 2013 ~ HEZ-F-=F+ZA

=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BNERFE
Additions AE
Disposals HE
Depreciation and amortisation charge 7% R 1%
Exchange realignment EHHE
Reclassified to disposal group ENHEENE
dlassified as held for REELEZHE
sale (Note 31) ARI(ME31)
Revaluation adjustment BihHE
Closing net book amount BREEFE
At 31st December 2013 R-g-=F
tTZA=t-8
Cost or valuation RASEE
Accumulated depreciation RitiE
Net book amount REFE
Comprising: af:
At cost A
At valuation fh{E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

(a)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

Group (Continued)
The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were stated at

valuations made at 31st December 2013. The leasehold
land and buildings were last revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited, an independent professional valuer, at 31st
December 2013, at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties. The revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus
net of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately
HK$33,404,000 (2012: HK$36,926,000) which has been
credited to the property revaluation reserve.

As at 31st December 2013, if the leasehold land and buildings
had not been revalued, they would have been included in
these consolidated financial statements at historical cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortisation, of approximately
HK$48,365,000 (2012: HK$50,431,000).

The Group's interest in leasehold land represents finance lease
payments held in Hong Kong between 10 to 50 years.

Depreciation and amortisation of the Group's property, plant
and equipment have been charged to the consolidated income

statement as follows:

Cost of services rendered RAIRS 2 A A
Selling expenses HEER
Administrative expenses THEA

As at 31st December 2013, the Group had pledged leasehold
land and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$224,400,000
(2012: HK$189,900,000) to secure banking facilities granted to

the Group as mentioned in Note 46.

Annual Report 2013 i

(a)

REE @)
AEBEZHEL M REFHIERZ
T—=F+-_A=t+—HBzZHE
F-AETHWREFHEE —AHE
VHEEMEMBERZITERAARN
—ZE—=F+-A=t—HBKk2E
MHEREYMELER S 2 AR
% RAEMERIIRHMELE
HITEM - SEENRBERIETAH
SRR EEEH AL 33,404,000
BIo(=—F— =4 : 36,926,000/8
TL)  WEAHARESEHE -

RZEBE—=F+-A=+—H " ¥
HETHWREFAKEMSR HE
1RE L BCATIBR RT3 8 KR8
#)48,365,0008 L( =T — = :
50,431,00087T) it AZFiR A M7
K -

FEBRBE L2 BGIENEE
BHENTFTEATFZREREN

e
A °

REBZYHE BEARREBZTE
NEBHERGAaERERR MR N
T

2012

—E——F

HK$'000

FHET

9,924 10,492
2,007 1,965
5,398 5,794
17,329 18,251

WM EE46FTI  WZT—=F+=
A=+—H Xr&EEEEREES
%8224,400,000 8 0(ZF — =4 :
189,900,000 7T ) 2 HHE - ih o1&
FUESETAEEZBITHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(b) Company (b) A&2QF
Computer
Furniture and office
and Motor  equipment
fixtures vehicles )4 Total
HERREE RE OBAERE @et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTAT FET FET
At 1st January 2012 R-ZB-—F—-A—H
Cost B 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,044) (1,563) (11) (2,618)
Net book amount FRIEF(E 946 187 13 1,146
Year ended 31st December 2012 BE-Z--%+=H
=t+—BLEFE
Opening net book amount HREFE 946 187 13 1,146
Depreciation charge wEMR (398) (187) 3) (588)
Closing net book amount HAREREFE 548 - 10 558
At 31st December 2012 R-E—=F
+=HB=+-—H
Cost B 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (1,442) (1,750) (14) (3,206)
Net book amount fREFE 548 - 10 558
At 1st January 2013 R-ZE—=%—-HF—H
Cost B 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (1,442) (1,750) (14) (3,206)
Net book amount REHE 548 - 10 558
Year ended 31st December 2013 BE-Z-=%1+=A
=t+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount HREFE 548 - 10 558
Additions NE 235 - 25 260
Depreciation charge wEMR (390) - (6) (396)
Closing net book amount HRBREFE 393 - 29 422
At 31st December 2013 R-E—=F
+=B=+-—H
Cost %N 2,225 1,603 49 3,877
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (1,832) (1,603) (20) (3,455)
Net book amount REFE 393 - 29 422
Depreciation expense of HK$396,000 (2012: HK$588,000) has PrE B 396,000 T(—F——
been charged to “administrative expenses”. 4 588,000 7L) ER [1THEMA]
IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES —- GROUP 20. REME-XEE
2013 2012
—B—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

At valuation &8

At 1st January n—A—H 36,400 28,700

Fair value gain N EEWE 6,600 7,700

At 31st December W+=—A=+—H 43,000 36,400

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated T 2RBEERERE BmIRER

income statement:

2013 2012

—E—=fF —E—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHAT

Rental income (Note 8) WA (FiFES) 2,594 1,862
Direct operating expense arising ELRSBAZIEEE
from investment properties FEAZBHEESEHAY

that generate rental income 283 277

(@)  The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by (a) AEEBZREMEZRE—RBABIL
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional EEGEMBER2TAERATN S
valuer at 31st December 2013, on the basis of market value E-—=F+_A=+—HBHEHEHE
(2012: same). EEETEG(ZZ—ZF : 8R) °

(b)  The Group’s interests in investment properties are analysed as (b) AEERNEEME T EROFTWT
follows:

2013 2012
—B—=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NFI0ES0F2HE 43,000 36,400
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non- BEAANEESHOEKR 2 KK
cancellable operating leases are set out in Note 44. HAXFE S ATREAMITE44 -

()  Asat 31st December 2013, the Group had pledged investment () tAMdsT46Frul R-ZE—=F+—
properties with a carrying amount of HK$43,000,000 (2012: A=+—08 AEFZEHZEKE
HK$36,400,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Y EERRE £ 58 43,000,000 0 ( =&
Group as mentioned in Note 46. — —4F : 36,400,000 78 7T ) LAMES

FTAEE ZRITRLE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(a) Group (a) =5£H
Goodwill Intangible assets
e EVAE
Deferred
development
cost Club Customer Software Customer
XL memberships  relationships  technology contracts Total

HRMA  efeR  RPEE  ANERE FPaY @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TiEL T FiEL Tk T

At 1st January 2012 R=2-Z%-A-A
Cost A 34,213 - 900 4,839 6,564 270 12,573
Accumulated amortisation ZHEERAE
and impairment - - - (725) (985) (270) (1,980)
Net book amount REE 34213 - 900 4114 5,579 - 10,593

Year ended 31st December 2012~ EZ-E--F+=f

St-ALEE
Opening net book amount BOEEFE 34,13 - 900 4114 5,579 - 10,593
Addition NE - 3,245 - - - - 3,245
Amortisation B - (192) - (1,009) (1,362) - (2,559)
Exchange realignment EXAE 2,034 12 - 23 303 - 538
Closing net book amount HREMFE 36,247 3,065 900 3332 4,520 - 11,817
At 315t December 2012 WZB-ZF
+ZA=1-H
Cost KA 36,247 3,260 900 5127 6,954 - 16,241
Accumulated amortisation ZHERRAE
and impairment - (195) - (1,795) (2,434) - (4,424)
Net book amount FAFE 36,247 3,065 900 3,332 4,520 - 11,817
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HZ—_Z—=F+_A=+—HIFE

(@) Group (Continued)

Goodwill
HE
Deferred
development
cost Club
EE memberships
BRRK  &fieR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TiEn T#n
At 1st January 2013 R=B-=£-8-A
Cost AR 36,247 3,260 900
Accumulated amortisation ZHEERAE
and impairment - (195) -
Net book amount BESE 36,247 3,065 900
Year ended 31st December 2013 ~ HZ-EF-=%1_f§
ZT-HLEE
Opening net book amount HNEEFE 36,247 3,065 900
Addition RE - 7,237 -
Amortisation &1 - (753) -
Exchange realignment ERRE (1,247) (117) -
Reclassified to disposal group ENNEENER
classified as held for BlEMEZHE
sale (Note 31) @881 (AE31) (35,000) (4,426) -
Closing net book amount BARETE - 5,006 900
At 315t December 2013 R-8-Z%
+=A=t-H
Cost A - 5,006 900
Accumulated amortisation 2HEERAE
and impairment - - =
Net book amount FEFE - 5,006 900

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 81 &t &EBR2AE  Annual Report 2013 Gz

(a) F&EBE )

Intangible assets
BVEE

Customer  Software  Customer
relationships  technology ~  contracts
EFEE  BAEE  EFEH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TiEn TR TiEn
5121 6,954 -
(1,795) (2,434) -
3332 4,520 -
3332 4,520 -
(1,003) (1,360) -
(101) (139) -
(2,228) (3,021) -

Total
@t
HK$'000
AT
16,241

(4,424)

11,817

11,817
1,231
(3,116)

(357)

(9,675)

5,906

5,906

5,906
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre I IRAR M

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

Group (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2013, amortisation of
approximately HK$3,116,000 (2012: HK$2,559,000) has been
charged to “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according
to operating segment. As at 31st December 2013, goodwill
of approximately HK$35,000,000 is included in the assets of
disposal group classified as held for sale (Note 31).

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use
calculation. As at 31st December 2012, the recoverable amount
is the value in use of the CGU, which is determined using pre-
tax cash flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five year period. No growth is assumed
for cash flows beyond the five year period. The key assumptions

used for calculation are as follows:

Average revenue growth rate 14%

Discount rate 15%

The annual revenue growth rate used is consistent with the
forecasts of the market. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the IT services operating
segment.

Annual Report 2013 53§

(a)

AR (50)
BHE-_Z—=F+-A=+—H1t
T #i5493,116,0008 T (==
— % :2,559,000/87C) ERGE
Bk 2 [RHEARTS Z BN JFR 0B ©

AR AR
HEEeIEERBELCEDERET
AEBZRESEEREM R =
—=Zf+-A=+—8"  BEY
35,000,0008 LAt A9 $E A#FEH
e HEMRIZEE (KEE31) -

\=al

ReEEEM 2z T ESETIRE
A7 BER SRR B REER
BEEAMEZEREETE N _%
“H#+-A=t+—H HEES
BluzalEeEsEEREE
IS EERAEREMbERE
TEMMREESEEEL 2K
RATRESRBAFE - BRBAR
FHHASREUWETMIZER - B

N

REtBEZEEBEEZWT ¢
FAHUR A K R 14%
rin= 15%

PRE Mz F i am R EmIHEA—

B MERZARERBEAFER

T HAREBREERBMBERELE
DEBRZFERR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) Z5TEEARAR]

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR BRI

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE - E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

(b) Company

At 1st January 2012, 31st December 2012 »

and 31st December 2013

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

At 1st January

Share of results of associates
Dividends received

Exchange realignment

At 31st December

(b) E2F

Rt SR E

AR E

804
563
(486)

(@)

877

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2013
and 31st December 2012 are as follows:

R=E-=F+=A=

Club
memberships
==
HK$'000
FET

500

500

2012
—ET——4F
HK$'000
FHT
1,287
486

(973)
4

804

+—BR=ZT—=

Ft+= H*+—E'$%IZ%LW%%

L\\Tuilﬁﬁu—r

Name of associate

BENTEH

iN Systems (Macao) Limited
BEZGREZ(RF) BRAF

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 Z#xEEAR AR

Country/place
of incorporation
and operations

AMRIREE AR HE
Macau

R

Thailand
ZE

Percentage of

nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital held
indirectly by the Company
AREHEEE
BRTEERE

BRAEML

333%

49%

Annual Report 2013 i

Principal activities

TEEHR

Provision of engineering
and software services

RETRRAIRE

Provision of engineering
and software services

RETRRBITRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—BItFE

The Group's share of results of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, and its AEERGERERSRECRP) BR AR

assets and liabilities, are as below:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Group's aggregate share of
net assets of an associate

Revenue

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Group's share of:
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

ZEREUNEEERABEWT

Group
TEE

2012

T F

HK$'000

FHT

JEMENEE 52 59

RENVEE 4,508 3,884

mEAaE (1,929) (1,531)

FEE 2,631 2,412
AEBMEGE—HEBE B2

FEERTE 877 804

A 6,153 6,297

P A 1,689 1,458

Eh2mEmikes - -

FREHEWELTE 1,689 1,458

REBEMD :

F[Z 5 A 563 486

Hib 2K = -

FAEERELEE 563 486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (Continued) 22, BF& N EIREZ — NEE (&)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses REBE D IR E(SASL Automated
of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of Services (Thailand) Limited E518 o FE&{f 3% 5
unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from the BNRZFRARBZAERERESB(E
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year and REME QAR ZAEEEEE) T

cumulatively, are as follows:

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=fF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Unrecognised share of loss of an FAREREN — B E AR
associate for the year pd | 58 6
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 M = -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEMEEIBERE 58 6
Accumulated unrecognised share of REPRERE — & AR
losses of an associate el i =Fk 590 532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to

the line items below:

Group

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables
Other receivables and deposits
Amounts due from customers

for contract work

Finance lease receivables
Restricted bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Group
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables
Other payables
Short-term borrowings
Other financial liabilities

Company

Loans and receivables
Other receivables and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Company
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables

FEE

B OR
PN 5 508

Hib IR R ®
BHTRREBREP A

FEY R E T B TR
R BIRITFR

R RALSEY
AR

REHERAIRZ ERAE
FERTE SR
HAb e 300A
RHEE
HiperBE

RO F]

SRR MR

Hi e IR R iZ
R MREEHED

LS
REHERAIRZ SRAE
H A FEAS 300A

SRMTAZEFBEEEANTIIEZA

2012

T F

HK$'000

FHET

210,963 237,471
9,448 9,770
241,928 224,856
30,987 40,289
48 3,987
114,661 116,677
608,035 633,050
224,208 231,778
7,926 13,996
49,257 2,669
- 8,239
281,391 256,682
237,368 97,256
1,120 2,301
238,488 99,557
175 120
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRARTEIRRM

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

24. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 24. AHIB QAT ZRE — & AT

2013 2012
—g—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost SEETARR MY - IR 1 134,623
Details of major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 48 to the AEBMZEXENBARFBIRGEEHE
consolidated financial statements. HRERMITEAS o
25. INVENTORIES — GROUP 25. FE-—XKE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBRT FHT
Goods held for resale BIEEE &Y 57,627 39,021
Goods pending for customers’ acceptance  AEEFEMNZEY 66,598 63,735
124,225 102,756
Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance FIEBEZENRBEREFPEMZENE
mainly represent computer equipment and software products. BREMBHLEREER
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of BE_Z—=F+_A=+—HLHFE
goods sold” amounted to approximately HK$811,281,000 during the ERBMX WA ATHERAN ] ZFEK
year ended 31st December 2013 (2012: HK$811,551,000). KH#) A811,281,0008 L (=T — = F

811,551,000 ) °

=
26. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 26. BERE S RIE-—XKH

2013 2012

—B—=F —T——F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHER FA&T

Trade receivables JEWE 5 F0E 211,761 238,264
Less: provision for impairment W RERE (798) (793)

Trade receivables — net FEWE S RRIE— F 7 210,963 237,471
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 AEBEBCZHBEFEARLHZEI0AEE
days and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue B o REBIRIEEEZE ST BEER
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. R ERIE - mARE IR E 2 SREE

BIMEL E TS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at the balance
sheet date, based on ageing from payment due date is as follows:

Current BN &R

Within 30 days EFNP
31-60 days 31£260K
61-90 days 61Z 90K

Over 90 days B0 K

As at 31st December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
HK$67,562,000 (2012: HK$98,205,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of

these trade receivables is as follows:

BHAT R 90 H
BB 90 B

Past due less than 90 days
Past due over 90 days

As at 31st December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
HK$798,000 (2012: HK$793,000) of the Group were past due and
impaired. These receivables are individually determined to be impaired,
and full provision has been made on these receivables. The debtors
have defaulted in the scheduled payments after due dates and
the Group performed an assessment and concluded the chance of
recovering the account receivables is low such that full impairment had
been recognised in respect of these receivables.
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fEME 5 FIRRBEN EE BARE N KB
BZBRE DT -

2012

—E—-—F

HK$'000

FHET

133,836 138,026
30,035 53,119
23,885 25,820
9,597 7,483
14,408 13,816
211,761 238,264

R_T—=f+-_A=+—0 EKE=E
5 A 4967,562,0008 L ( —F — —4F :
98,205,000/ 7T ) A @ BB R T RE -
ZEMREWE 5 FIE RS E I R i K
BrBIRFBR ZERKREHHIEL
BREC DA ¢

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
FHET

54,675 85,443
12,887 12,762

67,562 98,205

R-ZT—ZF+-A=+—8  A&£EZ
JEUWE 5 FIEA) 798,000/ L (=T — =
% : 793,000 T ) B @ B R B TR (E &
% - BEEYGEREREFETRE -
I B F U F MR R 2 88 - AR
AREIERR & &R BITEIES X - mAS
B BT A B T e R OE 2 e
BIK - W S RBGEER 2 ERE -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 X5t AR AR

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE - E—=F+-A=+—HILEE

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following JEE ZFIBARTEATSEEETHE -

currencies:
2012
—E—-—F
HK$'000
FAET
HKD BT 172,725 181,590
usD ETT 12,011 13,281
Renminbi (“RMB") NG 4,072 10,388
Thailand Baht (“THB") BT 2,226 875
SGD g T - 7,134
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SEPY 7,618 8,482
NTD e 12,868 15,206
Others Eith 241 1,308
211,761 238,264

As at 31st December 2013 and 31st December 2012, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

R-ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HE-_ZT—=
F+ZA=+—0 ERESZEBEZEE
SREEE N EEES -

REEZRWE S HIAZHMEREBES

receivables are as follows: mr

Movements of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

142
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2012

—E——fF

HK$'000

FET

At 1st January m—HA—H 793 515

Provision for impairment ERE 562 793
Reversal of provision for impairment TRE R ERE (175) (179)
Amount written off as uncollectible WH AEEKE 2 £ 58 (280) (336)

Reclassified to disposal group classified BN EENEABIELE

as held for sale 2 EMAR (91) -

Exchange realignment HE 34 (11) -

At 31st December w+=—A=+—H 798 793
FEWEIA 2 B R 2 B RERBREET A

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included as part of selling expenses and other cost of services in
the consolidated income statement (Note 11).

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Annual Report 2013 i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their
present values at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Non-current receivables: FE TR ED FE TR IR

Gross finance lease receivables JEW R A T ERUB AR
Unearned finance income REREZ & U A

Current receivables: FEEWRRIE :

Gross finance lease receivables JEW R A ERUB AR
Unearned finance income AERELZ BB WA

Gross receivables from finance leases: RERMERE 2 BIGRIEREE
Not later than 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —F%& kT FNA

Gross finance lease receivables FEU b & F & R IHR T
Unearned finance income RERERZ B & A
Net finance lease receivables EWmEREREFHE
The net finance lease receivables R R E R E R FEER
are analysed as follows: LA S EAS AT -
— Not later than 1 year ——FR
— Later than 1 year and ——FHERAFAN

not later than 5 years

Annual Report 2013 3f  Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE) R FEEBR AR

AT RBEREREFBENEEA Z&E

W H & e FE N KR

13,528
(596)

12,932

18,944
(889)

18,055

18,944
13,528

32,472
(1,485)

30,987

18,055

12,932

30,987

2012
—E—-—F
HK$'000
T

22,119

(632)

21,487

19,828
(1,026)

18,802

19,828
22,119

41,947
(1,658)

40,289

18,802

21,487

40,289
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 #;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T MR M

E-E-=Ft-AZ+—ALFE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Group Company
rEE b N
2012 2012
—E—-—fF T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Other receivables Hfth e W 3R IR 1,524 2,254 34 48
Deposits Ze 7,895 6,295 - -
Prepayments TERTFRIE 7,551 9,706 345 476
Amount due from the BEREERARIRR
immediate holding
company 13 - 13 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries  Fff/E& A RIR 3K - - 237,321 97,208
Amount due from a e IEESNIEVNGIVSE S
fellow subsidiary - 1,214 - -
Amount due from an associate  — B4 QB R R 16 7 - -
16,999 19,476 237,713 97,732

As at 31st December 2013, amounts due from subsidiaries included
interest-bearing loan amounting to HK$8,144,000 (2012: HK$9,667,000)
at 4% (2012: 4%) per annum. The remaining amounts due are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amounts approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

W-ZE—-=%+_-A=+—8 " ERKH
BRARREBEUNFRNERAN(ZT—=
F 1 4%) 5T B EFRIES, 144,000 8L (=F
— % :9,667,000/87T) ° 8 N EAE
B 2 EREEREE - AR BRI
B FEERAEEE N EERES

EARTIATIEHEHE

Group Company
rEH KAT

2012 2012
—E——4F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FAT
HKD BT 9,779 10,125 237,713 88,065
THB ik 777 1,948 - 9,667
RMB AR 4,706 2,252 = -
NTD e 994 2,093 - -
SGD N - 866 = -
usD E - 1,733 = -
Others EHfth 743 459 - -
16,999 19,476 237,713 97,732

As at 31st December 2013 and 31st December 2012, the carrying
amounts of other receivables, deposits and prepayments approximate
their fair values.
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F+—A=+—HBILtFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK - GROUP

As at 31st December 2013 and 31st December 2012, the balance
represented contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

29.

RN IREKREFRIE K
&8

RZE—=F+_A=+—HEKZ=F—=
E+ZA=Z+—8B HEREMEEZAH
BRZS N B B R IR B B aR T 18 A 2 1

=+
e

30. IRBBITERRBRERE
SZEY-FEBRAAR
Group Company
rEE AT

2013

—E—=F
HK$’000

FHERT

2012 2013 2012
—F——-F | == —ET—_fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Cash at bank and on hand BITRFERS 114,661 113,566 1,120 2,301
Short-term bank deposits RERRITER - 3,111 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BekReZEEY 114,661 116,677 1,120 2,301
Restricted bank deposits ZRBIRITER 48 3,987 — -

Restricted bank deposits represented fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks that were pledged against performance bonds and
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and restricted bank deposits
carry interest at market rates with average interest rates of 0.13%,
n/a and 0.63% (2012: 0.13%, 1.39% and 0.83%) per annum
respectively.

SRBVRITFFIE T MR B ERITZEH
T ZEFRCERMEANEEREER
R RRITRAE RO -

BT REBETERRZRHRITE
FIEMISMNEFTE  FHMNED RN ATF
0.13%  NEAN063% (T ——_F:
0.13% ~ 1.39% % 0.83%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRARTEIRRM

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 30.

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

ZREBITERRRERR
TEEBY -FAKERERTF

(%)

ReMBeEEMATIEEE

currencies:
Group Company
REE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
TE-CF bt —F—— —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET THET FHET
HKD BT 70,811 66,065 970 2,151
RMB AR 15,296 8,095 8 8
NTD e 6,672 7,861 - -
usb EV 15,658 20,355 142 142
SGD T - 1,353 - -
Others A 6,224 12,948 - -
114,661 116,677 1,120 2,301
Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies: ZIREIRITERIA T EEHE -
Group Company
REE N
2013 2012 2013 2012
ot —E-F - = TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT

THETT FERT TR

NTD e - 2,153 — -
MOP SR - 968 = -
THB ik 48 866 = -

48 3,987 - _
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

On 11th December 2013, i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd (“i-Sprint”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, signed a preliminary
investment agreement term sheet with an independent third party
setting out the key investment terms to be determined in respect
of the subscription of new shares in i-Sprint (the “Subscription”). It
is expected that the Subscription will highly probably be completed
within one year. Upon completion of the Share Transfer as described
in Note 49 together with the Subscription, the Group’s shareholding
in i-Sprint will be reduced to 48.22%, and the Group will cease
its control in i-Sprint and its subsidiaries (collectively the "i-Sprint
Group”). Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the i-Sprint Group
have been reclassified as assets and liabilities held for sale and

RZE—=F+ZA+—H KRF2¥
BEA M E A Ai-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
(Ti-Sprint]) BB —¥837 55 = J 35 7] — B
BABRGERE - HR M BEI-Sprint
B (TREBSEE)DNEBHFEREERK
RBESHEBHR —F R - R EE
(KT sE49FT il ) R RIEEHTKE + &K
SERI-Sprint B REAT A E 48.22%
AL E B TBESi-Sprint REB A A
(Hef8 [i-Sprint&@® 1) < ¥Rt - i-Sprint &
ENEERABCETHDEAFELESR
ERAE UBIUZINGAEAEERER

presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group has
not recognised any impairment losses in respect of the i-Sprint Group,

neither when the assets and liabilities of i-Sprint were classified as held

for sale nor as at the balance sheet date.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the i-Sprint Group
classified as held for sale as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from customers for contract work

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale

Trade payables

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance

Current income tax liabilities
Short-term borrowings

Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale

Net assets of disposal group classified as held for sale

Annual Report 2013 53§

A o Tami-Sprint EE R B ED B AIFE
HERNNEER - AEEWEFLI-Sprint
EEEREMRERSE -

REER - i-Sprint EBO B ARBIEHEZ
BEFBEZEBHENT

YIZ - BB R 1,575
EBREE 9,675
[GES 35,000
& 173
JEUE SFIE 12,668
Hib R « e RN F0E 3,960
AHIREWREFZE 9,653
ReERREEEY 11,497
NEARBEHE 2 HEARIZEE 84,201
BN E SFAE 3,038
FEFEHAaRE 892
H b EM B M BT E B 8,693
Sl 9,347
BUERFTIS R A fE 454
EHEE 9,506
PEAREREZLEMARZBE 31,930
BELEZHEHERZ FEE 52,271

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 X5t AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR ot

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE - E—=F+-A=+—HILEE

Number
of shares Amount
R EE &8
‘000 HK$'000
Fi& FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEO0.10B T ZERER
Authorised: EERA
At 1st January 2012, 31st December 2012 RZZTE——F—HA—H  ZF—=F
and 31st December 2013 +ZA=+—RAKRZ=ZT—=F
+ZA=+—H 600,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE
At beginning and end of the year REH) R 48 311,403 31,140
There was no ordinary share issued for the year ended 31st December HE-_T—=F+-A=+—HIEFEH
2013 (2012: same). BERTEBER(ZT——F : R) -
(a) Group (a) *=5£HE
2012
—EF——F
HK$'000
FAET
Special reserve R 34,350 34,350
Property revaluation reserve WEEGHEE 154,174 120,770
Translation reserve PE 5 & 1 2,205 4,406
Share-based payment reserve VARG D A BT S S R 3,548 1,916
Retained earnings REB AT 278,283 276,473
472,560 437,915
Movements of each component of the reserves are set out in HESD 2 BBEHNGEERE
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. EIIE.
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(b) Company

At 1st January 2012

Profit for the year

Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Final dividend for the year ended
31st December 2011

At 31st December 2012

At 1st January 2013

Profit for the year

Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Lapse of share options transferred
to retained earnings

Final dividend for the year ended
31st December 2012

At 31st December 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR T

For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

Special

reserve

KRR E

HK$'000

FHT

R-ZE-——f—-f—-H 95,513

FREF -

BWRERE -
HRARD AER LT AX
HE-_Z——F+-A=1T—H

HEE 7 RERE -

RZE-ZF+=ZA=+—H 95,513

R-E-—=F—A—H 95,513

FRHEH -

RURERE -
RGN BEES 2%
BESRABF 2 KRB E
HE-_T-—F+-A=1—H

HFEEZREBRE -

RZZE—=F+-A=+—H 95,513

(i)

The special reserve of the Company represents the
difference between the par value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital of
the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus shall not be
distributable if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

As at 31st December 2013, in the opinion of the
directors, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$95,457,000 (2012: HK$93,286,000).
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(b) Z&RT

Share- Retained
based earnings/
payment (accumulated

reserve losses) Total
NRGBHER RERA/

X RE (REtER) @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiET TET TER

- 14,394 109,907

- 347 347

- 159 159

1,916 - 1,916

- (17,127) (17,127)

1,916 (2,227) 95,202

1,916 (2,227) 95,202

- 17,641 17,641

- 5 5

651 - 651

(95) 95 -

- (15,570) (15,570)

2,472 (56) 97,929

()  ARAZEFANEHEERNAT

(i)

R AR EITRA
i 8% 17 2 B £ T B £ P Wi
MEBAREEFEZEZMRE:-
BREARE-NAN—FRQF
E(REET)  WMERERER
AEETNIEE ABAR
RAAIME DK -

(1) ARERESAIER S
RREERHEAED
B EE &

(2 AREEEZAERME
EEmMINEEER
HE BITRA AR
HERZ AR -

RZB-—=F+ZA=+—
H ZFRE AI#ES KT
KABBAREEAZEER
FE#)/95,457,0008 L (—F
— % :93,286,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARARTEIRRM

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

34. TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP 34. BEHESZRE—FKEKEH
2013 2012
—B—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade payables FERE S RIE 224,208 231,778
Less: non-current portion of trade payables & : [EI & S I8 2 RN D - (854)
Current portion of trade payables FERTE 5K IE 2 BN ER 5 224,208 230,924
As at 31st December 2012, all non-current trade payables are due R-E——F+_A=+—H " FIAER
within five years from the balance sheet date. BENE S FIEHREE BERTENTE -
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date, ENESRBREEARBENZINHAZ
based on payment due date, is as follows: BRECHITINT ¢
2013 2012
—B—=F —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current BN ER 145,817 142,399
Within 30 days 30 KA 44,089 50,287
31-60 days 31260K 21,380 21,025
61-90 days 61E90K 2,590 10,004
Over 90 days AKX 10,332 8,063
224,208 231,778
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: SRR T TG EIEEE -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HKD BT 132,612 153,494
RMB AR 11,451 3,486
usD ETT 67,549 48,606
THB B 3,069 3,667
NTD etk 8,333 22,028
Others Hith 1,194 497
224,208 231,778
At the balance sheet date, the carrying values of trade payables WEER BRESRBEZERERER
approximate their fair values. AEERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

~

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE T —=F +—A=1+—HBIEFE

35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP

AND COMPANY

35. Hitb BN RIER BB -

REEREQF
Group Company
REH ARF

2013 2012 2013 2012
=Ll T — —F Lol — T —
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FExT FHET

Other payables HAbFERFRIE 3,135 9,409 19 22
Accruals &Rt EMR 39,336 52,050 5,855 5,041
Amount due to the ultimate IR AR IR A R FE
holding company 239 3,019 = -
Amount due to the immediate  REZEIEI A FIFIE
holding company - 441 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries R A B FRIE - - 156 98
Amount due to a fellow R—MER R B A FIHIE
subsidiary 2,712 - - -
Amount due to an associate R — [ & A R RIE 1,840 1,127 - -
47,262 66,046 6,030 5,161

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

ERTIATIEHEHE

Group
REE

Company
AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
t- Sl — T —F POl —F— —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET TET FHET

HKD BT 38,262 45,432 6,030 5,161
RMB AR 4,305 3,698 - -
SGD T - 11,613 - -
NTD e 2,062 2,051 - -
Others Efth 2,633 3,252 - -
47,262 66,046 6,030 5,161
At the balance sheet date, the carrying values of other payables and REEH HitENZELESERZE

accruals approximate their fair values.

The amounts due to the ultimate holding company, immediate holding
company, subsidiaries, a fellow subsidiary, and an associate are

unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

R
EEZANREERE

REHEFERAT - BERERAR - HBA
A —HRERNBLAR R —fEEE LR
FEAEER  RERAREREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to
delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated income
statement upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which

is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the service

period stipulated in the respective customer contract.

N R ERRER

Balance of consideration payable

In 2011, the Group acquired the entire issued capital of i-Sprint
Group, depending on the upcoming financial performance of these
subsidiaries, the cash consideration for this acquisition may range
from SGD6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,000,000) to

SGD7,900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$47,400,000).

Further to the supplemental deed entered between the Group and
the vendor on 30th October 2012, the total cash consideration
for acquisition has been adjusted to SGD6,800,000 (equivalent to

approximately HK$42,162,000).

Other financial liabilities as at 31st December 2012 represent the
balance payable for the acquisition costs SGD6,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$42,162,000) less progress payment SGD5,500,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$33,923,000).

Short-term borrowings RHEE

As at 31st December 2013, the Group’s short-term borrowings are
interest bearing from 2.30% to 3.27% (2012: 3.26%) per annum and
are wholly repayable within one year. These borrowings are secured by
a standby letter of credit issued by Group, and in return secured by the

assets as detailed in Note 46.
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YU R BN E M AT R 2 B (B E
MmN A ERRRER) ¢+ RIEHRE
AIUER 2 B3 (RN B BE P A KRR
RS A B R IRER) -

2012
T F
HK$'000
FHET

- 8,239

RZT——F  AEBEWEI-Sprint£E 2
HEBITRA - RTULSHE R REHRN
HBRAmME  2RRENRESRENT
6,000,000 %7 13 7T (48 & 7 47 36,000,000
78 7T ) 27,900,000 %7 10 3% 7T (18 & R 4
47,400,000 7T) °

BAEEEESN _E——F+A=+H
RN 2RI — R - BREWE 2
RIS RBE BT EE£6,800,000%7 103 7T
(FAERH 42,162,000 7T) °

R-—TE——Ff+=-A=+—08 Hitg
BB & Ty 5 Uk B Ak 2K 6,800,000 1 N3 T
(FE 7 4942,162,00078 7T ) I8 it B 3018
5,500,000 %7 N 7t (A8 & 749 33,923,000
BITL) ZFER R o

2012
—E—-—4F
HK$'000
AT

49,257 2,669

R_Z—=ZF+-_A=+—H A£Hx
EHEEAREFNR230%E327%(=F
— T 1 3.26%)FTERAER—FRERE
Eo ZEEAAREREEAEFRIFENE
RiERABEOER - FHRME46 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

The components of deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movement during the year

are as follows:

At 1st January n—A—H

Tax charged to equity ARESIIBRIE

Tax (charged)/credited to BirABEER (GEA)
consolidated income 18 (M43E 15)
statement (Note 15)

Exchange realignment Ve 5 A%

Reclassified to disposal group ~ EFHEE N AFIELE
classified as held for sale 2 HEHR

At 31st December w+=—A=+—H

The investments in the PRC, the United States of America (the
“US") and Thailand incorporated operations give rise to taxable
temporary differences arising from the distribution of profits by way of
withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2013, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC, the US and Thailand. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC, the US and Thailand
for which deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$3,492,000 at 31st December 2013 (2012:
HK$4,234,000).
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FARGEEERBRMERZELEME
B(am)  EEZHDRAZEHIIRM

Group Company
rEE AAHE

2012 2012
—T—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
(28,883) (22,384) 736 294
(6,600) (7,297) - -
(568) 888 (446) 442
21 (90) - -
892 - - -
(35,138) (28,883) 290 736

BRENRDE  ERRFBKL 2 NAIESE
ERTEREER - REZUAEAREA
IR FTER

WREZ-—=F+-A=+—H AEET
EohE - EERFEERT 2B A
Z AR BE B W BT EE A 2 TR AN B e SRR ST
B - ARBEERR  ZEMBEBRAAN
A RERIAAEDIREERN - R _F
—=F+ZRA=+—B EHRHE.  EH
REBNKREFHENEREZESHOR
3,492,000/ 7T ( ZZF— 4 : 4,234,000/
70) W ERERR SR ALE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December
2013, the Group had total tax losses of approximately HK$22,476,000
(2012: HK$31,194,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred income tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$1,438,000 (2012: HK$7,161,000) of such losses.
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining approximately HK$21,038,000 (2012: HK$24,033,000) due
to unpredictability of future profit streams, of which approximately
HK$13,621,000 (2012: HK$8,187,000) will expire within 1 to 5 years,
approximately HK$6,792,000 (2012: HK$3,317,000) will expire within
6 to 10 years and approximately HK$625,000 (2012: HK$12,529,000)
with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year are as follows:

AR BEBEDEBABENSZEES
BEBBARRERT SN T U E AR
WRAEEMEHEE RZTE—=F
+TZA=+—H  AEEBEREEIEL
B4 522,476,000 0 ( =T — = F ¢
31,194,000% 7t ) AI FA YE 4K 88 R 2K A o
RIS EEC R BRAEEX)1,438,000
BL(=ZZF— Z4 7,161,000/ Jr )
o B K AE TE ORI R HOE R ORIk
W|ELER N 2 4921,038,0008 0 (= — =
% 124,033,000 70 ) MRIELEMEHE
B HF4913,621,000/870( - ——4:
8,187,000/ L) R —ZRHFNE|H - M
496,792,000 7T ( —ZF— —4 : 3,317,000
EIL) R N B+ R B H R B PR 24
625,000 7T ( —ZF——4 : 12,529,000%
JT) e

EAAFKASBIRAERHNGNIAR
BRI EOERITRN - BRFEAENEE
HF-RBERABURAEHRAR R
EREERRELEHESHAEBEERE
o RFEA - BEMBHEERERRE
HR—-HEEER AR MT

Group Company
S ] KRH
Accelerated  Revaluation Accelerated
tax of tax
depreciation ~ properties  Tax losses Total depreciation  Tax losses Total
MEREHE NEER HEER & MERERE HEER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAL i TAL TAL i TAL T
At 1t January 2012 W-Z-—%-F-H (6,751) (16,653) 1,020 (22,384) - 29 294
Charged to equity BERTIG - (7,297) - (7,297) - - -
Credited to consolidated R BREAEA
income statement (Note 15)  (Ff315) 710 - 178 888 124 318 4
Exchange realignment ERHE (90) - - (90) - - -
At 315t December 2012 and —ZE+ZR=1-A
Ist January 2013 &_ =F-f (6,131) (23,950) 1,198 (28,883) 124 612 736
Charged to equity BERTIG - (6,600) - (6,600) - - -
Credited/(charged) to REABRER
consolidated income A/ (18) (3 15)
statement (Note 15) 393 - (961) (568) 28 (474) (446)
Reclassified to disposal group ~ ENABENBAR(E
classified as held for sale HEZ I ERF 892 - - 892 - - -
Exchange realignment EHAE 21 - - 2 - - -
At 315t December 2013 RZB-Z5+ZA=1-A (4,825) (30,550) 37 (35,138) 152 138 290
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-—T—=F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

39. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND 39. ELEER —AEBRAAT
COMPANY (continued) (&)
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: BREFFSH 2 O
Group Company
rEE AT

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E = Eeblgetcll — T —F i
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T TFHET FHET

Deferred income tax assets — RIEFTS A E — i BB

to be recovered after 12 @ AU E

more than 12 months 320 1,441 290 736
Deferred income tax liabilities — JEIEFTISHi & & — 1§ R EBRE

to be recovered after 12 {8 A 1& Y /=l

more than 12 months (35,458) (30,324) - -
Deferred income tax ELFTSH (BE),

(liabilities)/assets, net BETHE (35,138) (28,883) 290 736
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

(a)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 8th August 2002. Under the Scheme, the directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time. Options granted must be taken up
within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration per grant. There is no general requirement that
an option must be held for any minimum period before it can
be exercised but the directors of the Company is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time
of grant of any particular option. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of
the Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of the

shares. The Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(a) Share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

The following table discloses details of the share options
held by employees (including directors) under the Scheme
and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st
December 2013:

At st January m—H—H

Granted during the year FAEE

Exercised during the year FRITEE

Lapsed during the year FRERK

At 31st December R+=—A=+—H

Exercisable at AR+T=ZA=+—~H
31st December ol

Weighted average hnRETF TR
remaining contractual EHIFEA

life

On 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012, 6,900,000 and 6,755,000
share options has been granted to the employees (including directors)
at the exercise price of HK$1.09 and HK$1.12 respectively.

The options granted on 19th March 2012 will be vested equally
on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant
date.

The options granted on 2nd May 2012 will be vested equally
on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant
date, or vested immediately in full in the event of a special
dividend of the Company being declared.
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HK$1.11

HK$1.10

HK$1.11

HK$1.11

(a) AT ZBEREE (B
TERBEEAHEES (REEF)RE
ZAatEBAE  BRERZSEHEE
ECE-ZHF+-A=+—HILF
B2 #EFHS

2012
—ET——F

Weighted

average
exercise price Number of
TS options
TEE EREHAE
13,235,000 - -
- HK$1.11 13,655,000
(1,680,000) HK$1.09 (420,000)
11,555,000 HK$1.11 13,235,000
Not Not
3,850,000 applicable applicable
TiEA TiEA
8.5 years 9.3 years
8.5 9.3%F

RZE—=F=A+hhBARZT—=
FRAZH - DRIATTEEE1.09%87T
E1NRBTHREE (BIEES) B
6,900,000 4% K2 6,755,000 A% BE A 42 o

RZZE——FZA+hBRENE
BREENELASENE— F2R
FoRTERESHERE -

RIT-—"FHEAZRAKREOER
BENELEYNE— E-NE
“REEREBENRE  SMmARQ
A SRR B AR B - 0 s o D B A
HRE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

(a) Share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

No option under the Scheme has been granted during the year.

In respect of the share options granted during the year ended

31st December 2012, the estimated fair values of the options

on the dates of grant were calculated using the binomial lattice

model. The estimated fair values were ranging from HK$0.305 to

HK$0.315 per share. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at the grant date AR B BB AR (E
Exercise price 11118

Expected volatility TE R R

Option life B % e 47 A1
Risk-free rate R =
Expected dividend TEHARR B

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical

volatility of the Company for the closing share price for the

period of 8 years before the date of grant.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 X EMAR AR
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(@) AT ZBRETE ()
4F PO b 4 AR ST 4% L B A o

MEE-T——F+-A=1+—H1t
FERHMERENS - WL AR
et EREA L BEIERAZEN
BiEEAE - B ARBENTE
[%0.30578 702 0.315/8 7T ° ZIER A
FEHAHEOT :

Granted on Granted on
2nd May 2012 19th March 2012
R-E—ZfF R-Z—Z=fF
FAZHARE =AT+hARWE

HK$1.10 HK$1.09
HK$1.12 HK$1.09
40% 40%

10 years 10 years
T T
0.85% 1.09%
5.0% 5.0%
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint

On 10th July 2013, the Board resolved to adopt an employee
share ownership plan of i-Sprint (the “i-Sprint Scheme”) to
grant awards to employees of i-Sprint up to 49,962,192 existing
shares of i-Sprint, representing approximately 30% of the
existing issued share capital of i-Sprint, which currently held
by ASL Security Solutions Limited (“ASL Security”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The awards are to be

granted in the form of:

(i) 26,979,584 restricted share units (“RSUs"), representing
approximately 16.2% of the existing issued share capital
of i-Sprint, which are i-Sprint shares denominated
in units conferring rights to the grantees to receive
existing i-Sprint shares when the RSUs are vested at no

consideration; and

(i) 22,982,608 share options, exercisable into approximately
13.8% of the existing issued share capital of i-Sprint,
which confer rights to the grantees to elect, at their
discretion, to acquire existing i-Sprint shares at an
exercise price of SGD0.046 (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.287) per i-Sprint share, or at an exercise price per
i-Sprint share to be determined by the Board (as the case
may be).

The i-Sprint Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
seven years commencing on 15th July 2013 and expiring on
14th July 2020. After such period, no awards shall be granted
but the provisions mentioned under the i-Sprint Scheme shall

remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

All RSUs and options granted under the i-Sprint Scheme will
become vested subject to the i-Sprint Group achieving certain
specified financial performance targets during the three years
ending 31st December 2014. Subject to the fulfillment of the
respective vesting conditions, all the awards will be vested by
1st May 2016.
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(b)

i-Sprint Z{EE R 75181

RZE—=FtA+RH EFg
SR R i-Sprintfg B R ) &t &
(Ti-Sprintzt &1 1) - mi-Sprintfg &
KRR &% 549,962,192
i-SprintIR B &G - (Hi-SprintFR A
B BETRAL30% (IR H AR A
2 EWA 2B R AASL Security
Solutions Limited([ ASL Security J) #f
B) o EEEATIIEARE

(i) 26,979,584 1 = PR il A% 1» &
iz ({5 i-Sprint IR A B 21T A
#16.2%) - BNABAI 252
i-Sprintf{n « ER B R
FTAEE AREF AT R ERER
WA I-Sprint gn: &

(i) 22,982,608 % & AR 4 (17 {F
BAEI-SprintI BB BITRA
#4913.8%) © H B T &K A
EFMRBERERTEETR
i-Sprint A% 15 0.046 ¥7 i0 3% 7T
(FAZR40.287 8 0) ik E
2K TEE 2 BRI-Sprint
MR FTEE (R FIERME)
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. BBRRHERTE ()
(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint (b) i-Sprint Z{EER DT & (&)

(Continued)

Upon a change of ownership of i-Sprint or an initial public firli-Sprint 2 AR # H 37 # &5k i-Sprint
offering of i-Sprint shares, all unvested RSUs and options (with BHETERXAREE  BIFTE X
which the condition relating to specified financial performance 58 2 LRI B8 K AR i (L
targets of the i-Sprint Group having fulfilled) will vest FRERARI-Sprint EEIEERHE
immediately. The grantees shall have the right to exercise their WEFE G BRI R - AEA
options within 14 days being notified of the abovementioned BEARBN LM EERI148R
event, and all unexercised options will be forfeited thereafter. ITERS ZERE - EFTAEA

118 2 B RS R M

The RSUs shall be deemed to have been accepted by the grantee REREBHEF =T NAEFAR
at no cost upon the execution of the acceptance letter of the 5 E PR GIRR 0 B AL R H R 2
grant letter of the RSUs within 28 calendar days from the date Mg LRI G B AR HAR
of grant. The option shall be deemed to have been accepted by BEEARANSREER - X E
the grantee upon the execution of the acceptance letter of the RHBBEFREE-T N \EZEBER
grant letter of the option with a remittance of SGD1 to i-Sprint FEALRE OB B 1 2 B AN R
also within 28 calendar days from the date of grant. [Ai-SprintlE R 1FT K L% - BEARE

BIRIR R E AR AR -

The following table discloses details of the RSUs awarded TEREBHEZE T —=F+_A
pursuant to the i-Sprint Scheme and their related weighted =+—BIEFEREI-Sprint 5T #1152
average fair value on the date of award during the year ended B 2 BRI B 1 BB 718 R B2 B
31st December 2013: BHEAZ IR BE

2013
—E—=F

Weighted

average fair
value on Number of
the date i-Sprint’s
of award shares
A S & B 2 g i-Sprint
FHAREE RHEE
At 1st January wn—HA—H - -
Awarded during the year F AN HLE HK$0.23 22,982,609
Lapsed during the year FRER - -
At 31st December ®+=—A=+—H HK$0.23 22,982,609
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint

(Continued)

The fair value of the shares awarded during the year on
the date of award is measured by reference to the business
valuation carried out by professional valuer by using the income
approach. The key assumptions used for calculation are as

follows:
Average revenue growth rate 17%
Discount rate 17%

The following table discloses details of the share options held by
i-Sprint's employees under the i-Sprint Scheme and movements
in such holdings during the year ended 31st December 2013:

i-Sprint Z{EE R 258 (8)

FARZBHABREBEOZAAE
BENSEEEGEMEMBKREEE
TTEVEBLERE - BEtEZE
EERRWAT

A R K 17%
Prn= 17%

TREBE#HEZE-_ZFT—=F+=-A
=+ —HLIEFEi-Sprint g R
i-Sprint st EIF A N EARE - KFTR

At 1st January

Granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year

At 31st December

Exercisable at 31st December

Weighted average remaining
contractual life

R—A—H
FARRH
FRTTE
FRKK
R+=—R=+—R

TR+ A=+ —BE

IHEF R A KIF

mR

HK$0.287

HK$0.287

Not applicable
FEHR

15,321,739

15,321,739

Not applicable
TiEH

6.5 years
6.5F
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint

(Continued)

In respect of the share options granted under the i-Sprint

Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2013, the

estimated fair values of the options on the date of grant were

calculated using Black-Scholes model. The estimated fair value

was HK$0.07. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Fair value of shares at the grant date
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Option life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend

HK$0.31
HK$0.28
41%

7 years
1.8%
5.3%

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical

volatility of the Company for the closing share price for the

period of 3 years before the date of grant.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$1,727,000 (2012: HK$1,916,000) in relation to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions under the Company’s Scheme and

i-Sprint Scheme.

Total consideration received during the year from employees for taking

up the shares under the options of the Company’s Scheme and the
i-Sprint Scheme amounted to HK$141 (2012: HK$49).
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T

RIRE ARG AAEE 0318

1TE(E 0.28787T
T8 AR 08 41%
B AR 1Y 74
EdElirplpEs 1.8%
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HEARRBRG 2 FHRTEZ B
EIRIREE
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
FAET
Profit before income tax FR P15 55 AR A1 23,594 47,701
Adjustments for: KR
— Share of results of associates (Note 22)  — fE{L B A R %48 (M7 22) (563) (486)
— Amortisation of intangible assets — A ERE(HFE21@)
(Note 21(a)) 3,116 2,559
— Depreciation and amortisation of —WE - BB KR EITE R
property, plant and equipment (FF3E19(a))
(Note 19(a)) 17,329 18,251
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —NEYE BEREZBEZ
plant and equipment (Note 11) (Weas) /51 (MsE11) (150) 189
— Fair value gain on forward foreign —RENES K 2 A BEWE
exchange contract (Note 9) (fF3E9) - (254)
— Fair value gain on revaluation of —EEREMEZ AABEKS
investment properties (Note 20) (MF5E20) (6,600) (7,700)
— Fair value loss/(gain) on deferred —EREEREZARER
consideration payable (Note 9) e, (e ) (FIEE9) 16 (3,124)
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for —REGFERE (BERED)
obsolete inventories (Note 11) (BF3E11) 303 (314)
— Interest income (Note 8) —F B (HIFE8) (156) (155)
- Interest expenses = 1,633 282
— Equity-settled share-based payment — AR BER S 2 X
expenses 1,727 1,916
— Provision for impairment of trade —EWE SR IERERE
receivables 562 793
— Reversal of impairment of trade —EWE 5B RE R ERE
receivables (175) (179)
Changes in working capital: EEEE
- Inventories -FE& (21,945) (1,790)
— Trade receivables —FEWE 5518 13,453 (29,403)
— Finance lease receivables — RYE B FEWGRIE 9,302 (17,552)
— Other receivables, deposits and —HMEKRIE - ke RIEFNFRIEA
prepayments (1,483) 4,824
— Amounts due from customers for — AR TIREWE P RIE
contract work (26,725) (34,241)
— Restricted bank deposits —ZRHIRITER 3,939 (3,127)
— Trade payables —ENESRIA (4,532) 31,346
— Other payables and accruals —HibENFIB R ETE R (10,300) 21,492
— Receipts in advance —FEl I (5,549) 15,790
Cash (used in)/from operations R 2 /e (), A (3,204) 46,818
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

41. CASH (USED IN)/FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from the disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

41.

#Eé%ﬁzfﬁﬁ(itﬂ)/ WA

&)
MEABRERERA  HEVE  BER
HIEBRLE -

,}

axﬁZFFr 5

2013 2012
—E—=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net book amount of property, plant Y - BB REE 2 REFE
and equipment (Note 19(a)) (PftsE 19(a)) 274 398
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEREHEZ WG
and equipment (Note 11) (BB (MsE11) 150 (189)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE -« BB REREZFTEHRIE
plant and equipment 424 209

42,

As at 31st December 2013, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of certain of its office premises which fall due as follows:

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - GROUP 42.

ERENAE -FKH
K-F—ZF+-A=+—A ARER
R EROAR TS AR
TRAEWEZ R RBEBRNSHRSE
mT :

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F A 5,502 7,369
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —#F%&MFAFER 2,782 1,669
8,284 9,038
Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two MAESYEZHRAOFH _E=FFEE—
to three years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. Ko HEEERHENZ E o
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS — GROUP 43. EXREE-NEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of property, — P4RAMFRE WD FTAIEREE
plant and equipment contracted for but 2 BEREREIEANHAT
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements - 365
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

At 31st December 2013, the Group had contracted with a customer in

respect of land and buildings under operating leases as follows:

Not later than one year —FR
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —#F%& M FHFR

As at 31st December 2013, bank deposits held as security for
banking facilities and performance bonds amounted to approximately
HK$48,000 (2012: HK$3,987,000) (Note 30). As at 31st December
2013, performance bonds of approximately HK$43,990,000 (2012:
HK$55,039,000) had been issued by the Group to customers as

security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to
the Group amounted to approximately HK$44,512,000 as at 31st
December 2013 (2012: HK$44,500,000). The amount utilised against
goods supplied as at 31st December 2013 which was secured by
the corporate guarantee was approximately HK$1,074,000 (2012:
HK$887,000).

As at 31st December 2013, the Group pledged leasehold land
and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$224,400,000 (2012:
HK$189,900,000) and investment properties with a carrying amount
of HK$43,000,000 (2012: HK$36,400,000) to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31st December 2013, the Group's restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$48,000 (2012: HK$3,987,000) were pledged to
secure the banking facilities and performance bonds of the Group
(Note 30).
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RZZT—=F+-A=+—H KEEB
AR RBF2EEHNEZFITHN
T~

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FHET

2,594 2,624
1,513 4,302

4,107 6,926

M-ZB—=F+-A=+—0 " URTEF
SHAEEBRRITHE MBLOREZSEL
548,000 7t ( —Z — — 4 : 3,987,000
BL) (Hi¥30)c RZZE—=F+=A
=t+—B FAEBHTEFEAAHRK
2 BHIREBEX 43,990,000 T (=F
—— 4 :55,039,000/87T) °

R-_EBE—=%+_-A=+—H BWEAH

R ZERAAEEMHRES R Z AAE
R &) /544,512,000 T( =T — Z F:

]

44,500,000 7C) c R=ZT—=F+=-A
=+—H BERERRUAQRBERERR
ZEREER B AR1,074,0005 T
—ZE— 1 :887,000/87T) °

R-ZE—=F+-"fF=+—H K£EEE
I BR A £ 50 224,400,000 2 FHE +
iR F(ZF — — 4 : 189,900,000 %
JC) M BRI 4 5643,000,000 8 L 2 &Y
¥ (—Z— 4% :36,400,00087T) LAES
BYAEEZRITRE -

WZZ—=F+-A=+—H A&HZ
FIRHISRITAEE240 48,0000 8T (= —=
% ©3,987,000/87T) C MIEAKE ZRTT
BE R EORE ZER (BHEE30) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BRI o

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—E—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE

MN_T—=f+-_A=+—H FHE
BRKESARRRMNZ67.05% 82T
32.95% D mEMALTEEE - AREIR
R AE AL REBRAKEHEEOER
AR —RRPEERKZZ AT R
DR EBEFZ ST LT °

As at 31st December 2013, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 67.05% of the
Company’s shares, the remaining 32.95% of the Company’s shares are
widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Company is Beijing
Teamsun Technology Co., Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
and its shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.

(a)  Transactions with related parties (a) HEBEBATZIRS
2012
—F——F
HK$'000
FHT
Nature of transaction XEME
Ultimate holding company: BAERAR
Sales by the Group AEEEE 867 185
Purchase by the Group rEEES 7,754 7,293
Other income charged by the Group ~ A& EH MU A = 5
Expenses charged to the Group REEZ N 2R 292 328
Fellow subsidiaries: ERMEBEAR :
Sales by the Group AEBHEE 3,850 1,218
Purchase by the Group rEBEE 19,745 690
Expenses charged to the Group REEZN 2R 12 -
Immediate holding company: BEERARF
Sales by the Group AEBREE 114 265
Purchase by the Group rEBBEE 252 441
Expenses charged to the Group REBZN 2R 125 26
The associates: | 2N
Sales by the Group REBEHEE 44 -
Purchases by the Group rEEESE 4,381 4,347
Staff costs charged to the Group AEBEZNFzEBIME - 107
Rentals and administrative expenses ~ ZAREEEU 2 S RITHFSX
charged by the Group 169 160
Rental income charged by the Group ~ ZAN$E EEU 2 S WA 30 64
Management services income F N S E U EN 2 B I ARG A
charged by the Group 118 82

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at R EBREEE R EEERER
—HEAZ ERREGIETRS

normal commercial terms that are consistently applied to all

customers and vendors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A IR BT

For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

(b)  The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Note 28 (b) AEEHERDEALT 2 ERERER
and 35. MFE28 &% 35 °
() During the year, loans from the immediate holding company (0 TR KREEEZERAAKRRN
and a fellow subsidiary amounting to HK$25,000,000 and & A 7 % 5l # 25,000,000 7% 7T &
HK$2,036,000 respectively were fully repaid. 2,036,000 TR ERE BEEE -
(d)  Key management compensations are disclosed in Note 13 and (d) FEERABMENMTI3R14A
14. WEE o
Particulars of the Company's major subsidiaries at 31st December R-E—=F+-_A=+—HBEZ_Z—=
2013 and 31st December 2012 are as follows: F+-_A=+—8 ARRZEEHER
AIFFIBEAT -
Percentage of
Nominal ~ nominal value of
Country/place of value of issued issued share
incorporation/ and fully paid capital held by
establishment share capital/ the Company
and operation registered capital KDAENL
Name of subsidiary #R/Ry/ BERTR RITRA Principal activities
HEAREE B AFRLE BRRA/ERER BEAHL TEER
2013 2012
“E-=fF ZB-CZF
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary shares ~ 100% 1100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
BRZG(EH)ERAA 2% DETERR and solutions and provision of hardware
HK$55,350,000 services (including installation and maintenance
55,350,000 7T services) and software services (including
A Non-voting deferred shares software development, consulting and
NERZRETR professional services)
RALR  BESHERREARRRIRME
TR (BRERR RRERY) kB R
(BERHRE  BRREERS)
ELM Computer Technologies Hong Kong HK$12,000,000  100% 1100% Sale of computer products and solutions
Limited BE Ordinary shares and provision of hardware services
BRI ERAR 12,000,000 BT LMk (including installation and maintenance

services) and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
HESRERRBAN R RRMARARE (2
BRERRERE) REM RS (REHHE
B BEREERH)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR BRI

For the year ended 31st December 2013 &

Particulars of the Company's major subsidiaries at 31st December
2013 and 31st December 2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
WEARZE

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited
BHZR(RM)ERAR

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

Guangzhou Automated
Systems Limited

BAREXEREREBRAR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 Z#xEEAR AR

E

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

/R

B BAFRBE

Macau
iy

Thailand
R

The PRC
PEARANE

=FE+ZA=+-HIEFE

R-TE—=F+-_A=t+—HER-_ZT—=
F+ZA=+—8 ARAZEEWNBL

AREWT ¢ (4)

Percentage of
Nominal nominal value of

value of issued issued share

and fully paid capital held by
share capital/ the Company
registered capital ADREG
BRIR BRA
BRRE/EMER BHEAGL
2013 2012
Z2-ZF ZB-CF
MOP10,000 Ordinary shares ~ 100% 1100%
AP 10,000 TE B
THB50,000,000  100% 1100%
Ordinary shares
%4K50,000,000 T £ ER

HK$30,000,000 (Note 1)~ 100% 100%
30,000,0007% 7z (i3 1)

Annual Report 2013 i

Principal activities
TEEH

Investment holding, sale of computer products
and solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation and maintenance
services) and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

RERR - HEEMERIEA R RRERM
BIIRG (BREZERFERE) R RS
(ERFHRE  BRREXRS)

Investment holding, sale of computer products
and solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation and maintenance
services) and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

RERR  HESMERRBAHRRIRY
BT (BREZR RIRERS) kB R
(PEZMEE  BRREERS)

Sale of computer products and solutions and
provision of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)

and software services (including software
development, consulting and

professional services)
HETREMRBARRRHERARS (2
BRERRERSE) REMRS (RERHE
¥ ERRZERR)



Particulars of the Company's major subsidiaries at 31st December
2013 and 31st December 2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
WEARZE

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Co., Ltd.
FREHAARBEREAAR

I-Sprint (Beijing) Technology
Co,, Ltd.
Lafle (L) MR AREELT

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited
BEREXEEANAER AR

I-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

I-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

/R

B BAFRBE

The PRC
PEARANE

The PRC
FEARANE

Taiwan

Lt
Bl

Singapore

st

Malaysia
FRAES
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 &}

AR B BT ot

E-E-ZF+-_A=t+—HILEE

R-TE—=F+-_A=t+—HER-_ZT—=
F+ZA=+—8 ARAZEEWNBL

AREWT ¢ (4)

Percentage of
Nominal nominal value of

value of issued issued share

and fully paid capital held by
share capital/ the Company
registered capital ADREG
BRIR BRA
BRRE/EMER BHEAGL
2013 2012
“3-Zf ZB--f
RMB100,000 (Note 3) ~ 100% N/A
ARH100,0007z (M5£3) Gl

RMB2,500,000 (Note 4) ~ 100% 100%
A1 2,500,000 (FizE4)

NTD42,000,000  100% 100%

HA42,000,0007

SGD2,245,048  100% 100%

2,245,048 F 1T

MYR500,000 (Note 2) ~ 100% 100%
E1£500,00077 (M3 2)

Principal activities
TEEH

Provision of software development,
distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
REFHEE  HE EHR
XEEMEREREMER

Provision of software development,
distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
RESHAZ  H¥ ERR
SERMBARERERER

Sale of computer products and solutions and
provision of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)

and software services (including software
development, consulting and

professional services)

HERRERRBANRRRHRRE (2
BRERRERE) BB RS (RERHH

% ERREERE)

Investment holding, provision of developing,
distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
RERR RERAE 2 BHERER
RAREREMER

Provision of distributing, implementing and
supporting technology risk

management products

REDE  THRERIER
EREREH

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B 8) X5t AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-A=+—HBILtFE

Particulars of the Company's major subsidiaries at 31st December
2013 and 31st December 2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
WEAREE

I-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd

-Sprint Innovations Inc.

ASL Holdings Limited

ELM Technologies Holdings Limited

Express Success Limited

Express Returns Limited

Express Profits Development Limited

ASL Security Solutions Limited

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EEAR AR

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

/R

B AFRBE

Malaysia
FRAES

The US
e

British Virgin Islands *
ABRKHE

British Virgin Islands
RERAES

British Virgin Islands *
RBRUBE’

British Virgin Islands *
ABRAHE’

British Virgin Islands *
ABRAHES

Cayman Islands

FEEE

Nominal
value of issued

R-E—=F+-_A=t+—HER-_ZT—=
F+ZA=+—8 ARAZEEWNBL

AREMT ¢ (4)

Percentage of
nominal value of

issued share

and fully paid capital held by
share capital/ the Company
registered capital ADREG
BRITR BRA
BRBRE/EMER BHEAGL
2013 2012
“B-Zf -ZB-Cf
MYR2 100% 100%
58
UsD100  100% 100%
100%7T

USD1 Ordinary share
1ETEER

USD1 Ordinary share
1ETEER

USD2 Ordinary shares
LRTERR

USD2 Ordinary shares
QETERR

USD2 Ordinary shares
QETLER

HK$0.1 Ordinary shares
0.1 BT ERR

Annual Report 2013 i

'100% 1100%

'100% 1100%

'100% 1100%

'100% 1100%

'100% 1100%

'100% 1100%

Principal activities
TEEH

Provision of distributing, and implementing
technology risk management products

HRERRAERERERRH

Provision of distributing, and implementing
technology risk management products

HBREREIEREREREH

Investment holding, sale of computer products
and solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation and maintenance
services) and software services (including
software development, consulting and

professional services)

EEMERNBRNERR]
RIHRS (RRERRERE) RN RS
(BREEMFR  BRREERS)

Investment holding

BAHR

Property holding
ESE2

Property holding
NERE

Property holding
ESY]

Investment holding

RERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 H#E T —=F+-A=+—B1LFE

Particulars of the Company's major subsidiaries at 31st December
2013 and 31st December 2012 are as follows: (Continued)

A The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company,
carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to participate

in any distribution on winding up.
# These companies operate in Hong Kong.
! Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.
Notes:
1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC

as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st
December 2013 was HK$30,000,000 (2012: HK$18,000,000).

2. The issued capital of i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd up to 31st December
2013 was MYR500,000 (2012: MYR250,000).

3. Beijing i-Sprint Technology Co., Ltd. was registered in the PRC as a 100%
variable interest entity of the Company. The paid up capital up to 31st
December 2013 was RMB100,000.

4. i-Sprint (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. was registered in the PRC as
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st
December 2013 was RMB2,500,000.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year (2012: same).
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RZF—=F+=_A=t—HAR=F—=
FTZA=1T—R ARRAZIEWER
AIFET - ()

A BREEECR (LIFMARRFEE)
0 48 B 75 A A AR AR B Bl OB R X B {E
AIRRARG ZBERHERRAGRN
G LRERSEFRE ZEMDIK

# HZENFTNERBLE -

! ARREEFBZHMBAT -

1. BEMARBEEEEENBERARIRRE
ARKXAMBAMAIEBERLE - B
E-_T-—ZHF+-_A=+—AZEH
& 7K /30,000,000 T (=T — — & :
18,000,000 7T) °

2. BHE-_ZTZ—=F+-_A=+—8"
i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd z B #47%
AREH 500,000 (—E——F: FE¥
250,0007T) °

3. IRLZARMBRERETRARPEA
REMEBE M RAAT 2 100% o] &
BB -HE_T—=F+-A=+—8
ZEHERR/ARE 100,0007T ©

4. ZillE (b)) B AR EE AR P E
ARAMBEFMAIEBERE - HE
—E-=ZF+ZRA=t-BZEHER
A AR 2,500,000 7T °

RAFEEER - BENB AR EITEM
BERESF(ZT—ZF : fHR) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-A=+—HBILtFE

On 28th January 2014, ASL Security, i-Sprint, Top Realm Global
Limited (“Top Realm”) and Superguard Global Holdings Limited
(“Superguard”) entered into a deed of share gift and trust pursuant
to which ASL Security, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
principally engaged in the investment holding, owned 100% equity
interest in i-Sprint and transferred at nil consideration 9.44% and
7.90% of the then issued share capital of i-Sprint to Top Realm and
Superguard for the purpose of new employee share ownership plans
to be adopted by Top Realm and Superguard respectively (the “Share
Transfer”). Both Top Realm and Superguard are special purpose
vehicles set up, among other things, to hold the award shares on trust
for the benefit of the participants of the aforesaid new employee share

ownership plans.

On the same date, the Company, ASL Security, i-Sprint, Great Ally
Investments Limited (“the Investor”), Top Realm and Superguard
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which i-Sprint
issued and allotted, and the Investor subscribed for 118,973,914 new
shares of i-Sprint (representing 41.67% of the enlarged issued share

capital of i-Sprint following the completion) for a consideration of

USD9,850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$76,833,000).

Upon completion of the Share Transfer and the Subscription on
12th February 2014, the Group’s shareholding in i-Sprint reduced to
48.22% and the Group ceased its control in i-Sprint, which resulted in
a deemed disposal of the Group's interest in i-Sprint with an estimated
gain of approximately HK$39,910,000 arisen from the deemed
disposal. In addition, the i-Sprint Scheme (Note 40(b)) was cancelled

upon completion.

Details of which are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
28th January 2014, 4th February 2014 and 12th February 2014

respectively.
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RZZF—MF—H=+/\H  ASL Security *
i-Sprint » BARKEBRAB(EHL) &
EERBRIERAR A B ([ER D) FT D
EREE R FEEE - UL+ ASL Security (—
RARR2EREETENERELR M
BAE - WA I-Sprint 100% 2 #EzE) LA
TRAE D FIEEI-Sprint & 5 0 B ITIRA
9.44% }:7.90% TR H K=& - AT
BREGRMTIEERGTE( RO E
B BHREEY R (EFREE)UERT
XU EERMOETE 2 28E A2 A
BHEBRMOMELZERENAT -

AREEB - A&7 - ASL Security * i-Sprint *
Great Ally Investments Limited ([ & &
D TBHEREEITLRBEHZE B
gt i-SprintBE T RALE - MIREER
85118,973,914 8% i-Sprint# I 5 ( 8 &
R i-Sprint R & 2 R B TR
41.67%) + X{8/%9,850,000 % T (HHE R
476,833,000 7T) °

MN-_T—NFE - A+ -AxmBRHOEER
RIEEIEE - NEERI-Sprintd g T
FEZ48.22% + #eif A EEHli-Sprint ©
UL AR AE B AR EERI-Sprint 2 s o
T8 A R EH & i-Sprint & 4 2 WS 4
39,910,000 7T o BEAN - R EAK B R EE E

REEIE - i-SprintsTEI(M15E40(b)) TR
i o
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—E-A+-BAEZAE -



For the year ended 31st December 2013 HE—T—=F+-_A=+—BI1LFE

Particulars of the Group's investment properties at 31st December 2013 and R-Z—=F+-_A=+—BE-T——F+=

31st December 2012 are as follows: A=+—0 FREBZEEVMEFBEOAT
Location Gross floor area (sq.ft) Use Tenure

ok BEEE(FAR) Az FH

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor, 11,744 sq.ft Commercial Medium Lease
Topsail Plaza, 11,744 F 7R [GES AR ERTEAY

11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories
R

W H

I 1158

EaE% 1218
1275 & 1522158
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Automated Systems (H.K.) Ltd.
15/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Ltd.
16/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
Room 1801, Block B, Centre Plaza
No.161 Linhexi Road

Tianhe District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510620)

Tel: (86) 20 2881 6633

Fax: (86) 20 2881 6631

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited — Shanghai
Room 2709, 27/F, China Insurance Building, 166 East Lujiazui Road

Pudong District, Shanghai, China
(Postal code: 200120)

Tel: (86) 21 6100 5583

Fax: (86) 21 6100 5581

i-Sprint (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.

Rm A1509 Shougang International Tower
No.60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing 100082, China
Tel: (86) 10 5145 5056

Beijing

F10-11, Science Fortune Centre
8 Xueqing Road, Haidian District
Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100192)

Tel: (86) 10 8273 3988

Fax: (86) 10 8273 3999

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &8 X EMAR AR
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BER5(BE)ARAF
HEYPH

2O 11 5%

EEES 1518

3% ¢ (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

BB EEHE AR A A
HEYDH

2O 11 5%

E|ERES 1618

3% ¢ (852) 2541 9900
f8H : (852) 2541 1338

BN REEEE SRR AR AR
&M T KA @ AR AP R 161 5%
FRERREISBE 1801 E
(EP4R : 510620)

% ¢ (86) 20 2881 6633

{EH : (86) 20 2881 6631

BEINREEEEEREARAR - LG
EETARMEERE R 166 5%
FERBRAE 2709 =

(Ep4R : 200120)

5 (86) 21 6100 5583

{8H : (86) 21 6100 5581

ZalE (bR B AREEAR
ERTEREEAEPEAE 6057
IR BB AKE 1509 =
15 1 (86) 10 5145 5056

b=
bR E 25 85
BRI ERLAE10-11E
(E04% : 100192)

3% ¢ (86) 10 8273 3988
{5 : (86) 10 8273 3999



Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Major Subsidiaries and Associates

BEENEEER AR — FENEREE QA

Hangzhou

Unit G, Tower 6, Zhongtian Mansion
173 Yugu Road, Hangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 310007)

Tel: (86) 5718767 2710, (86) 571 8767 2711,

(86) 571 8767 2712
Fax: (86) 571 8767 2713

Shenyang

Room 1903, Tower A, President Building
69 Heping North Street, Heping District
Shenyang, China

(Postal Code: 110003)

Tel: (86) 24 2281 2800, (86) 24 2281 2229
Fax: (86) 24 2281 2811

1/F, Block B-6, Zhuhai Southern Software Park
No.1 Software Road, Zhuhai, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 339 5569

Fax: (86) 756 339 5577

Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd.

3/F, No.18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598

Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569

CSA Automated (Macau) Ltd.

Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No.180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No.180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390
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HM

TN R B 173 5%
FHEAE6EGE
(%045 : 310007)

%5 ¢ (86) 571 8767 2710, (86) 571 8767 2711,

(86) 571 8767 2712
{85 : (86) 571 8767 2713

e

& 5 T A1 [ AN S 4E K7 69 57
BIFEREAKEI1903E

(Ep4R : 110003)

TEEE ¢ (86) 24 2281 2800, (86) 24 2281 2229
B : (86) 24 2281 2811

W™ EREE 158
B B E Be R —18
(E04% : 519080)

3% ¢ (86) 756 339 5569
{85 : (86) 756 339 5577

AEREEEEAREERAR
AEaIM1M4RMEE
RAEERIRNEL 1857312

: (886) 2 8792 8598
fEH : (886) 2 8792 8569

B8R4 ORFI) ARAF]
JRFIAR R AEES 180 5%
REDEETL 142 0-RE
% ¢ (853) 2878 6392
{8H : (853) 2878 6390

BEZRFEEBCRP) BRAA

RPIAR EAEES 180 5%

REDEERL 142 0-RE
©(853) 2878 6392

{EH : (853) 2878 6390
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Major Subsidiaries and Associates

ABEGEBRERAT — T EMBRBHEAT

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
Blk 750A #01-01
TechnoPark @ Chai Chee
Chai Chee Road
Singapore 469 001

Tel: (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara

46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Innovations Inc
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: 1201 604 3545
Fax:1 732 422 0178
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ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Fl.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
%G 1 (662) 185 3206
{#H : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.
283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0902, 9th Fl.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
% EE 1 (662) 185 3206
{#H : (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
Blk 750A #01-01
TechnoPark @ Chai Chee
Chai Chee Road
Singapore 469 001

: (65) 6244 3900
5 : (65) 6244 8900

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel = (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax : (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara

46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel = (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax : (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Innovations Inc

197 Route 18 South

Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
: 1201 604 3545
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